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The 2014/15 financial year has been another successful year for the 
organisation in the quest to implement its five year Strategic Plan as 
approved by the Executive Authority and the Eastern Cape Legislature. 
The financial year marked the first year of the implementation of the 
strategic road map of ECSECC in support of the execution of the provincial 
development imperatives. 

ECSECC’s focus in the year under review was to support the Eastern 
Cape Planning Commission in the fulfilment of its mandate to develop the 
Provincial Development Plan whose main intent is the charting of a new 
development trajectory for the province over the next 15 years. 

As part of a reflective process and in order to remain responsive and 
relevant, ECSECC reviewed its programme focus areas and structure to 
reflect new priorities and the new directions in the development space.  
ECSECC as an upshot of this process consolidated its programmes into six. 

 

In the period under review the following performance highlights include: 

A stable board and functional sub-committees that met regularly and 
provided a solid governance platform for the organisation to deliver on 
its mandate;

A clean audit opinion from the Auditor General for the third 
consecutive time; 

ECSECC continued to strenghten its governance and administration 
through implementing programmes to enhance the ICT governance 
framework within the overall model of the DPSA, improved the internal 
control environment in order to retain the clean audit outcomes, and began 
a foundational work  for the implementation of the combined assurance 
model as an integrated approach to organisational effectiveness.

As part of enhancing knowledge management, a series of workshops in 
districts on the socio-economic profiles of the districts were held. These 
workshops were held in collaboration with the COGTA EC. 

“ The financial year marked 
the first year of the 
implementation of the 
strategic road map of 
ECSECC in support of the 
execution of the provincial 
development imperatives in 
this term of government”
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As part of provincial Presidential 
Infrastructure Co-ordination 
Commission work, ECSECC 
conducted studies in the following 
areas in order to assess the potential 
economic benefits that could be 
accrued to the province as a result of 
the implementation of the projects:

Review of the Information and 
Communication Technology 
initiatives in the Eastern Cape was 
concluded. The study was meant 
to give the province the profile 
of ICT initiatives taking place in 
the Eastern Cape with a view to 
identifying gaps in terms of what 
could be done in the context of the 
PICC to accelerate the programme 
to bridge the digital divide.

Supporting the Department of 
Transport to develop Mthatha 
Airport Strategy towards a 
complete Infrastructure Project 
packaged for the mobilisation 
of investment funding for the 
development of the Airport as the 
next urban node of Mthatha as 
well as a Logistics Hub.

Review of the Eastern Cape 
Energy Sector.

A governance framework was 
developed for the Mzimvubu 
Multi-purpose development project 
and a series of engagements and 
consultation workshops were held 
to disseminate information and 
engage stakeholders. 

The provincial ICT Working Group 
responsible for amongst others 
interfacing with the national 
broadband initiative made inputs 
into the national broadband strategy 
and continued to serve as a platform 
for integration and alignment of 
provincial thinking with respect to ICT 
and development and as an enabler 
of service delivery.

Provided support to the Nelson 
Mandela Bay, OR Tambo 
Municipality, Buffalo City Metro, 
KSD Municipality and Alfred Nzo 
Municipality. The support mainly was 
on development planning both at 
macro and micro levels. 

Provided support to the following 
departments: OTP, CoGTA, Human 
Settlements, Social Development, 
Legislature, Education and 
Transport mainly with strategic and 
implementation planning.

As part of work integrated learning 
ECSECC in partnership with 
MerSETA introduced a cost-benefit 
and quality analysis measurement 
instrument as a consultative tool to 
promote innovation and quality in 
apprenticeship training.

In the context of the World Aids day 
ECAC mobilised resources for the 
funding of the Masizakhe Orphanage 
in Mdantsane. An amount of  
R1,7 million grant donation towards 
the building of the dining hall and 
the kitchen was donated by Transnet 
through the intervention of the 
Department of Public Enterprises. 

A mid-term review of the Provincial 
Strategic Plan on HIV/Aids, TB  
was concluded.

Continued to provide secretariat and 
strategic support to the HRD Council 
and Eastern Cape AIDS Council 

In conclusion I would like to thank 
the Office of the Premier and Board 
members for their commitment to the 
organisation, and would also like to 
thank management for implementing our 
strategies and decisions. I am confident 
that together we can have significant 
development impact in the province.  

MeC M QHoboSHIyane

Chairperson of the Board

25 August 2015
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General FInanCIal reVIeW oF eCSeCC 
ECSECC’S financial position is stable. As a schedule 3C Entity, the 
government guarantees both operational and employee costs. It is however 
important to note that with the government facing financial strain, austerity 
measures have been introduced by the entity. ECSECC management 
advocates a culture of effective, efficient and economical spending. 

SpenDInG trenDS oF eCSeCC
ECSECC has done well in terms of spending in the 2014/15 financial year. 
Of the budget allocation of R48 908 000, ECSECC has spent R47 359 000 
(including commitments) which amounts to 94% of the allocation. 

reQueStS For roll oVer oF FunDS
A roll over application has been lodged with the Provincial Planning and 
Treasury department. ECSECC has requested to roll over its full cash balance 
as at 31 March 2015 which amounts to R4 959 510. Written support has been 
received from the Office of the Premier for the application to be approved.

Supply CHaIn ManaGeMent
ECSECC prides itself with compliant supply chain management systems, 
processes and practices. There have been no significant issues identified 
by our assurance providers. This is as a result of a strong system of internal 
controls and a culture of accountability and integrity advocated by the 
entity. ECSECC always follows due process and hence there have been no 
unsolicited bid proposals during this financial period.

preVIouS year’S FInDInGS
Matters raised by the Office of the Auditor General in the previous period 
were not control or compliance matters but housekeeping matters and 
these have been fully addressed.

Mr a Murray

Chief Executive Officer

25 August 2015

“ ECSECC 
management 
advocates a culture 
of effective, efficient 
and economical 
spending”
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StateMent oF reSponSIbIlIty 
anD ConFIrMatIon oF aCCuraCy 
For tHe annual report
To the best of my knowledge and 
belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts 
disclosed in the annual report 
are consistent with the annual 
financial statements audited by 
the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, 
accurate and is free from any 
omissions.

The annual report has been 
prepared in accordance with the 
guidelines on the annual report as 
issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements 
have been prepared in accordance 
with the General Recognised 
Accounting Practices. The 
accounting authority is responsible 
for the preparation of the annual 
financial statements and for the 
judgements made in this 
information. 

The accounting authority is 
responsible for establishing, 
and implementing a system 
of internal control designed to 
provide reasonable assurance as 
to the integrity and reliability of 
the performance information, the 
human resources information and 
the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged 
to express an independent 
opinion on the annual financial 
statements.

In our opinion, the annual report 
fairly reflects the operations, the 
performance information, the 
human resources information and 
the financial affairs of the public 
entity for the financial year ended 
31 March 2015.

Yours faithfully 

Mr a Murray

Chief Executive Officer

25 August 2015

MeC M QHoboSHIyane

Chairperson of the Board

25 August 2015
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A poverty free Eastern Cape where everyone 
benefits equitably from the economy and realise 
their human potential.

MISSIon
To be a multi-stakeholder centre of excellence  
in applied policy research, development planning 
and facilitation.

ValueS anD prInCIpleS
ECSECC continues to be driven by a mix of values 
that obtain from the Liberation Struggle in 
our country together with that of internationally 
competitive, “cutting-edge” socio-economic policy 
research institutes. Core values and principles include:

non raCIalISM

non SeXISM

HuMan DIGnIty

DeMoCraCy

aCCountabIlIty

tranSparenCy

proFeSSIonalISM

InnoVatIon

orGanISatIonal learnInG

ConStruCtIVe CrItICISM, anD

CreatInG tHe ConDItIonS For people to realISe 
tHeIr Full HuMan potentIal.
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More specifically, the founding document sets out the 
following six goals for ECSECC: 

Advise and assist provincial government achieve an integrated 
development strategy for the province and its constituent regions, in 
order to address the economic development of the province particularly 
the needs of deprived communities and underdeveloped areas;

Facilitate and coordinate the implementation of development 
programmes between all key stakeholders in the Province of the 
Eastern Cape;

Facilitate development by providing an avenue for formal inputs into the 
policy-making process of government;

Support government in advancing efficient service delivery;

Empower communities and the grassroots structures of civil society to 
engage in development; and 

Assist the provincial government in developing policies and strategies 
that will facilitate the growth of the provincial economy.

ECSECC’s legislative mandate 
is derived from its status as a 
Schedule 3C Public Entity (in terms 
of the Public Finance Management 
Act), as well as from its legal status 
as a Section 21 Company. 

In terms of its Section 21 status, 
ECSECC’s Memorandum and 
Articles of Association describe 
the main business of the company 
as being “To play a consultative 
and advisory role (primarily 
socially and economically) to 
the Eastern Cape Government”. 
The Memorandum and Articles 
of Association outline the 
proceedings for Annual General 
Meetings, through which the 
Board of Directors are elected. 
ECSECC’s founding document 
describes its functional mandate 
as that of fostering “a new 
relationship between the key 
stakeholders of the province”.
The labour movement, organised 
business, developmental non-
governmental organisations and 
the Government will be the key 
components of the Council. 
Through this body the parties will 
strive to jointly promote the goals 
of economic growth and increased 
participation in decision-making 
on the implementation of the 
Reconstruction and Development 
Programme (RDP).

The principal objective of the 
Council will be to advise and 
assist the provincial government 
to achieve an integrated 
development strategy for the 
province and its constituent 
regions, in order to address the 
economic development of the 
province in terms of the RDP, 
and in particular the needs of 
the deprived communities and 
underdeveloped areas. The 
Council will achieve this through a 
planning and development process 
which can give effect to both 
strategy and operational issues.”
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VaCant
Innovation & Research Specialist

nozuko SoMnISo
Executive Secretary and Chief 
Risk Officer

proGraMMe 1b 
StrateGy, operatIonS anD 
knoWleDGe ManaGeMent

proGraMMe 2 
eConoMIC GoVernanCe

proGraMMe 3 
InFraStruCture 
GoVernanCe

proGraMMe 4 
StrateGIC GoVernanCe

proGraMMe 5 
HrD

proGraMMe 6 
HIV/aIDS

VuyISa DayIle 
Head of ECAC 
Secretariat

VaCant
Economic 
Governance 
Programme 
Manager

SIV Helen HeSjeDal 
Manager: 
Strategy and 
Knowledge 
Management

noMSa MboVanI-
nabo 
Corporate 
Affairs 
Manager

anDISa zInja 
Chief Financial 
Officer

lutHanDo jaCk
Chief 
Operations 
Officer

nolutHanDo 
MbanGelI
Quality 
Development 
Officer

nataSHa auGuSt 
Programme 
Secretary

VuyolWetHu nkoHla 
Statistical 
Economist

teboHo QHoloSHa  
 HRD 
Programme 
Manager

bapHelele MHlaba
Strategic 
Governance 
Support 
Programme 
Manager

nopHIWe luDIDI  
PTCS Manager

MICHael leWIS 
Development 
Economist

bulelWa 
lubelWana 
GIS Specialist

notHanDo 
SHenXane 
HR Officer

MFanuFIkIle 
MWelaSe 
Finance 
Manager

noMabHele 
ManDaba 
Information 
and Knowledge 
Management 
Coordinator

zuzeka kWanGa
Admin 
Assistant

nokuzola 
MSHuMpela 
Supply Chain 
Manager

luSanDa bantWInI  
Policy 
Researcher

luVuyo MoSana 
Development 
Planning 
Specialist

CHrIS MotSIlIlI 
Governmental 
Coordinating 
and Planning 
Specialist

noMonDe 
HlatSHaneneI 
IMHR Manager

CInGaSHe noGaya 
LED Project

kaMbale kaVeSe  
Senior 
Economist

lItHeMba 
ntlokonkulu  
IT Officer

VelISWa tIMa 
Accounts 
Officer

noSanGo kanDIle 
General 
Assistant

eSetHu 
MaGWentSHu 
Information 
and Knowledge 
Management 
Assistant

noMpuMelelo 
SItHole 
Receptionist

SIbonGIle nDubaza
Procurement 
Officer

ntoMbebanDla 
MtatI 
General 
Assistant

nozuko nkunDla
Office 
Assistant

Daryl braaM 
Education 
Specialist

lIbHonGo 
ntlokonkulu
Policy 
Researcher

Dr pelISa Dana 
HIV Senior 
Researcher

ruSSell GrInker 
Development 
Facilitation 
Specialist

noyISe SeMane 
Programme 
Secretary

lunGISWa Dubula 
Programme 
Secretary

zeoDor arenDS 
M&E Specialist

VIWe booI 
Programme 
Secretary

lulaMe MpaHla 
Youth 
Coordinator

bulelWa MHlontlo 
Events 
Coordinator
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perForManCe DelIVery 
enVIronMent
eConoMIC unCertaInty 

rSa DoMeStIC eConoMIC DeVelopMent anD poSt-reCeSSIon 
CHallenGeS

Low economic growth, high unemployment rate, deindustrialisation and 
increasing cost of living are amongst the post-recession challenges that the 
country needs to address. According to the South African Reserve Bank, 
the pace of increase in the real gross domestic product decelerated to 1.4% 
in the third quarter of 2014, a disappointing performance compared to that 
of 5.1% attained in the fourth quarter of 2013. The poor performance of the 
South African economy in the fourth quarter of 2014 was mainly attributed to 
a contraction in the primary and secondary sectors’ real outputs. 

Looking at the Eastern Cape economy, the seasonally adjusted real GDP 
at market prices for the third quarter of 2014 slowed at an annualised rate 
of 0.4% from 0.9% achieved in the second quarter of 2014. This decline 
was mainly driven by poor performance in construction, mining and 
manufacturing activities which reflected negative growth in 3Q2014. 

Source: Own calculations derived from Statistics South Africa, 2014

RSA and EC Economic Development, 3Q2014
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auDItor’S 
report: 
preDeterMIneD 
objeCtIVeS
The AGSA currently performs the 
necessary audit procedures on the 
performance information to provide 
reasonable assurance in the form of an 
audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on 
the performance against predetermined 
objectives is included in the report to 
management, with material findings 
being reported under the Predetermined 
Objectives heading in the report on 
other legal and regulatory requirements 
section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 73 of the Report of the 
Auditor's Report, published as Part E: 
Financial Information.
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It is over five years since the global 
recession seized up, and various 
economists have speculated on when 
the “W-shaped” recovery (also referred 
to as “double-dip”) in the province 
will come to an end. In the Eastern 
Cape, the first post-recession dip was 
experienced in the first quarter of 2013 
(with a negative growth of -0.5%) and 
the second one in the third quarter  
of the same year (with a negative 
growth of -0.8%). 

This poor and persisting slowdown 
in the Eastern Cape economy was 
aggravated by two factors, namely, a 
high cost of living making the Eastern 
Cape headline inflation rate among the 
highest in country as well as a high 
unemployment rate in the province.  
In the third quarter of 2014 alone, 
17 724 people were added to the list of 
unemployed and 18 869 people to the 
discouraged job-seekers. Consequently, 
the unemployment rate rose to 29.4% in 
3Q2014 compared to 27.5% in 3Q2013. 

Overall, the following findings are noted 
with regard to the performance of the 
Eastern Cape economy:

Fragile economy with 0.4% growth 
in 3Q2014,

Growth in the Eastern Cape remains 
unsustainable,

Low growth rate with downward 
overall trend, and

Slow recovery with a double-dip 
of negative growth in 1Q2013 and 
3Q2013.

Index of economic sector performance in the EC (1995 = 100)

Source: Own calculations derived from Statistics South Africa, 2014
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A long-run perspective of 
economic sector performance 
in the Eastern Cape reveals that 
gross value added in construction 
and transport has more than 
doubled in real terms. 

The index shows that agriculture 
sector’s real GVA improved the 
least from 100 in 1995 to 129 in 
2013. This is not good news given 
the challenge of thousands of 
children who go to school hungry. 
To meet the first Millennium 
Development Goal of “Alleviating 
poverty and hunger”, the agriculture 
sector needs to be prioritised. The 
index also shows that transport 
sector’s real GVA improved the 
most from 100 in 1995 to 265 in 
2013. This demonstrates the effort 
that has been made to improve 
infrastructure in the province.

With economic growth slowing 
in the third quarter of 2014, the 
Eastern Cape labour market shows 
for the same quarter, 1 960 059 
people in the Eastern Cape labour 
force of which  1 384 487 people 
employed and 575 572 people 
unemployed. It also shows for 
3Q2014 that:

Consequently, the official 
unemployment rate dropped to 
29.9% in the third quarter of  
2014 from 30.3% in the second 
quarter of 2014.

Deindustrialisation: a major 
concern to EC policy makers

A long-run perspective of 
employment sector performance 
in the Eastern Cape reveals that 
Government and trade sectors 
maintained a dominant in terms 
of their significant contribution to 
employment in the province. 
While in 1995, manufacturing 
sector contributed 18.6% to 
GDP and 16.9% to employment, 
these shares declined to 17.2% 
and 12.2% respectively in 
2013. This implies the level of 
deindustrialisation that has 
occurred in the province over the 
past two decades.

Post-recession 
unemployment trends in 
the Eastern Cape 

Looking at post-recession trends 
for both official and expanded 
rates of unemployment, the 
Quarterly Labour Force Survey 
(QLFS) released by Statistics 
South Africa shows that 
unemployment rate in the Eastern 
Cape has fluctuated in the range 
of 37% and 44% for the expanded 
definition of unemployment 
and the range of 24% and 29% 
for the official definition of 
unemployment. These rates are 
much higher amongst the youth 
and amongst female than they 
are amongst their adults and  
male counterparts. 

Source: Own calculations derived from Statistics South Africa, 2014
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Deindustrialisation: a major 
concern to EC policy makers

A long-run perspective of employment 
sector performance in the Eastern Cape 
reveals that Government and trade 
sectors maintained a dominant position 
in terms of their significant contribution 
to employment in the province. 

While in 1995, the manufacturing 
sector contributed 18.6% to GDP and 
16.9% to employment. These shares 
declined to 17.2% and 12.2% respectively 
in 2013. This implies the level of 
deindustrialisation that has occurred in 
the province over the past two decades.

SectorS contribution to GDP SectorS contribution to emPloyment
 1 995 2 013  1 995 2 013

Agriculture      2.6 2.1 Agriculture       7.9       4.5 

Mining       0.2 0.1 Mining       0.1       0.2 

Manufacturing     18.6 17.2 Manufacturing     16.9     12.2 

Electricity       1.4 1.0 Electricity       0.4       0.4 

Construction       1.7 2.7 Construction       7.6       9.1 

Trade     14.8 13.9 Trade     16.3     22.6 

Transport       7.0 8.8 Transport       3.7       5.2 

Finance     19.2 22.8 Finance     11.3     10.1 

Community     10.1 10.4 Community     25.1     26.8 

Government     24.4 21.2 Households     10.6       9.0 

TOTAL 100 100 TOTAL 100 100

CPI - inflation reveals high cost of living in the 
Eastern Cape

The consumer price index (CPI) is the main variable used to measure 
inflation. The CPI measures the changes in prices of a basket of goods 
and services purchased by a representative set of households. The 
South African reserve bank (SARB) has set an inflation target that ranges 
between 3% and 6% per annum. 

The quarterly comparison Year on Year percentage changes in the CPI for 
South Africa and Eastern Cape are presented in the figure right. The 
figure shows that:

The Eastern Cape CPI fluctuated below that of the country in all four 
consecutive quarters of 2013; and thereafter, it performed above that of 
the country in all three quarters of 2014. This implies that in 2014, the 
cost of living in the Eastern Cape became higher than that of the country 
as a whole, eroding the disposable income of households and the level 
of saving that is already low in the province.

The Eastern Cape CPI increased from 6.0% in 1Q2014 to 6.6% in 
3Q2014. It is clear that the EC average CPI for 2014 will be above 
the SARB upper limit band of 6%. Food and petrol remain the main 
contributors to inflation in the province. 

Measuring the CPI - Inflation in RSA 
and EC

Source: Own calculations derived from Statistics 
South Africa, 2014
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Implications for Development Planning

Planning during periods of economic uncertainty is very different from planning 
during periods of economic stability. Careful assessment must consequently 
be made of the inherent opportunities and risks associated with the current 
conjuncture, including: 

The fact that growing policy space exists to break with orthodox 
development models. Relationships between the state and markets are 
being revisited, with renewed emphasis on active industrial policy and 
new forms of state support for inclusive economic development; 

The increased presence in the global policy landscape of issues of 
sustainability, food security, and how to more effectively delink growth 
and fossil fuel dependency;

The increased acknowledgment of the role that knowledge institutions 
such as the universities and science parks have played in driving growth 
and innovation (the so-called “triple helix” of industry, universities and 
government) in both established and emerging economies;

The evident shift in the relative balance of economic power, over the 
recent past, away from the uS, Europe and japan, to the emerging 
economies of China, India, Vietnam, Indonesia, among others; the 
emergence of fast-growing African economies (Ghana, Nigeria, 
Mozambique, Zambia, Ethiopia, Tanzania etc.), as well as the emergence 
of BRICS as a powerful multilateral body and trade alliance;

The sluggish growth prospects for South Africa, are set to continue for 
the next few years (linked in part to the country’s over-reliance on raw 
materials, metals and minerals exports, financial inflows, and continued 
ties to the Eurozone). The continued under performance of the SA 
economy has exacerbated already existing trends of deindustrialisation, 
and consequently increased levels of poverty and unemployment, while 
at the same time reducing state revenue. This has rapidly increased 
the budget deficit, eroded the financial resource base of the state and 
increased the cost of debt. This occurs precisely at a time when counter-
cyclical infrastructure investment is needed, higher risk direct investment 
to stimulate the economy, as well as increased social protection spend. 
There is a growing imperative to optimise efficiency and value for money 
by state structures, and reduced scope for so-called vanity projects. 
Resource allocation must increasingly be tied to policy priorities and be 
based on cost-benefit analysis.

patH DepenDenCy  
The Eastern Cape has been a marginalised 
region in the South African economy 
from the discovery of diamonds and gold 
in the late nineteenth century. With the 
emergence of the mining core of the 
economy in the twentieth century, the 
Eastern Cape’s primary function in what 
came to be known as the “minerals- 
energy complex” was to supply unskilled  
labour through the migrant labour system. 
This strict role in relation to the national 
economy arose because of the absence 
of substantial mineral resources in 
our region, and the establishment of 
“bantustans” which functioned primarily 
as labour-sending areas. 

This structural relationship between the 
Eastern Cape region and the mining 
heartland of the national economy has 
not been significantly modified since 
1994. People from the Eastern Cape 
continue to migrate out of the Province 
to get employment. Since 1994, the 
three main economic centres of SA, 
Gauteng, Durban and Cape Town, have 
increased their share of the national 
population and GDP.

This history of our Province as a “labour 
reserve” rather than a productive base, 
continues to manifest itself in a variety 
of ways, such as:

Our total fixed capital stock per person 
is half of the SA figure.

Our GDP per person is just over half 
of GDP per person for SA as a whole 
(about R26,000, compared to about 
R48,000, 2010 figures).

We have even higher rates of poverty 
and unemployment than SA. 

There are indications that this peripheral 
status is potentially set to change with 
the repositioning of the province as an 
energy-industrial hub. But how these 
developments result in higher levels 
of economic inclusivity, as well as 
benefit the east of the province, needs 
to be addressed. The former Transkei 
economy in particular continues to 
display limited growth prospects, 
with key initiatives bottlenecked as a 
result of weak and often incoherent 
governance arrangements. The Wild 
Coast Development Initiative and 
related Special Economic Zone (SEZ) 
offer fresh opportunities to build 
productive capability, centred around 
agro-industry, green industries, and 
tourism. This must be a core focus for 
ECSECC over the next 5 years. 
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SHIFtInG SoCIal DynaMICS 
Since 1994, Government has put in 
place a fairly comprehensive set of 
social safety net measures to address 
poverty and deprivation. These include 
social grants, access to basic education 
and healthcare, subsidised housing 
and free basic services for the poor 
and indigent. While in many instances 
the intended outcomes may have 
been compromised by weak service 
delivery, there is sufficient evidence 
to suggest that these measures 
have impacted positively on levels of 
poverty and deprivation in the province. 
Poverty levels in the Eastern Cape have 
decreased on average by between 7-24 
percentage points between 2000 and 
2012; the human development index 
has increased faster than the national 
average (from 0.50 to 0.63); and there 
have been significant improvements 
in access to basic services (especially 
electricity for lighting and cooking which 
has increased by more than 25-33 
percentage points over this period). 

These safety net measures have been 
vital in mitigating the impacts of poverty 
and vulnerability, and have also resulted 
in significant resource transfers to 
less developed regions in the province 
(thereby stimulating aggregate demand, 
albeit with impacts primarily in the trade 
sector). Going forward they need to be 
extended, with improvements in delivery 
efficiencies and targeting. But in and of 
themselves, safety net measures do 
not address the structural determinants 
of poverty and deprivation. These are 
rooted in the (unequal) structure of 
the economy, and consequent low 
levels of labour market and economic 
participation. Measures to increase 
levels of economic participation - 
including industrial policy, anti-monopoly 
legislation, BBBEE, PPPFA, land reform, 
education and skills development, access 
to subsidised finance, infrastructure 
development, and other forms of co-
operatives and SMME support - have 
not sufficiently realised the policy 
outcome of a more inclusive economy. 
South Africa remains one of the most 
unequal societies globally, and race 
remains the central determining 
factor in economic and labour market 
status. unemployment, particularly 
youth unemployment, has increased 
steadily over the recent past (and is 
estimated to be as high as 70% on the 
expanded definition in some parts of 
the province). 

These objective factors - of extremely 
high youth unemployment and 

continuing levels of social inequality- 
coupled with rising expectations for 
quality service delivery and economic 
opportunities - provide a potentially 
volatile dynamic which has seen both 
an increased number and increased 
intensity of social protests in the 
province. These social protests can be, 
and indeed have been, exploited for 
opportunistic political gain, especially 
where local community leadership lacks 
the necessary capacity and legitimacy 
to intermediate between state and 
community structures.  

As it plans, ECSECC must be mindful of 
these dynamics, and ensure that it:

Pays sufficient attention to 
addressing the underlying structural 
economic determinants of poverty 
and deprivation;

Addresses rising expectations among 
citizens for the state to deliver quality 
services and jobs;

Identifies and addresses the 
constraints to more broad-based 
economic participation, especially 
among the youth;

Pays particular attention to 
addressing the challenges in the 
education and training system;

Seeks new ways of building 
legitimate and capable community 
and local-ward level leadership (both 
within the state and civil society).

leVeraGInG oFF eMerGInG 
polICy opportunItIeS 
There is an emerging consensus with 
the key policy frameworks governing 
economic development - the National 
Development Plan, the New Growth 
Path, the National Infrastructure Plan, 
and the Industrial Policy Action Plan - that 
widespread structural change is needed 
to deal with deep-rooted problems 
afflicting the economy and society. 
These problems include the fact that:

Levels of growth are too low to 
reduce persistently high levels of 
unemployment and generate the 
state revenue to sustain and extend 
government’s social protection, 
economic development and 
infrastructure programmes; 

Ownership of the South African 
economy remains overly 
concentrated in the hands of a few 
large conglomerates, mostly in the 
mining and financial sectors; 

The national spatial economy remains 
overly concentrated in Gauteng, and 
many of the core features of the 
apartheid geographic landscape (of 
underdeveloped and under-serviced 
townships and Bantustans) remain; and 

Policy measures to address regional 
disparities (such as the Spatial 
Development Initiatives, the Integrated 
Rural Development Strategy, and the 
urban Renewal Programme) have 
lacked adequate scale and impact.  

There is now widespread consensus 
for a more interventionist state role 
in building a more inclusive economy. 
It is important for the Eastern Cape 
to interface more deliberately with 
national policy and planning processes 
to ensure: 

Our priority infrastructure projects 
(especially those that build logistics 
and energy capability, regional 
competitiveness, and redress service 
backlogs) are included in the National 
Infrastructure Plan project pipeline 
and optimised in terms of local benefit 
(employment, procurement etc.); 

State procurement is better utilised 
to promote industrialisation of lagging 
regions (eg. capital goods manufacture 
linked to infrastructure spend);

The province optimally benefits from 
the Special Economic Zone policy, 
with the leveraging of a wide array 
of incentives;  

Increased industrial policy support for 
light and medium sized labour intensive 
manufacturing (especially where 
backward and forward linkages can be 
optimised - such as agro-industry)

The development of national regional 
policy and spatial fund (as alluded to 
in the NDP) to ensure the appropriate 
spatial targeting of resources for the 
Eastern Cape;

Current impasses in land reform and 
land administration are addressed so 
that development can be unlocked; and   

As the most health compromised 
province, we take full advantage of 
the benefits of the National Health 
Insurance Scheme; among others.
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proVInCIal plannInG anD 
GoVernanCe
In light of these emerging national 
development opportunities, it is vital that 
the province becomes more coherent and 
unified around the development agenda 
it seeks to pursue. This must include 
strong policy co-ordination and leadership 
at provincial level (located in the Office 
of the Premier), and the bedding down 
of the often complex and unwieldy multi-
level governance arrangements that often 
hamstring development. 

It is important that we draw lessons 
from the PGDP which has now come 
to an end in terms of its 10 year 
planning time-frame. The PGDP and 
many of its sector strategies, plans, 
and programmes were subject to 
“stop-start” discontinuities associated 
with changes in the political and 
administrative leadership of Provincial 
Government. The stakeholder compacts 
which characterised the development 
of the PGDP and the District GDSs 
were not sustained, and a system 

of mutual accountability was not 
maintained. Also importantly, the 
necessary implementation support was 
not provided (programming, resource 
allocation, capacity development, 
monitoring, evaluation etc.). Competing 
prioritisation frameworks (such as the 
Medium Term Strategic Framework) 
also worked to undermine the 
authority of the PGDP over time as the 
overarching strategic framework around 
which all government and stakeholder 
development actions in the province 
should be organised and mobilised.  

The extent to which we can sustain 
an appetite for plan-led development 
and evidence-based planning over 
the long term remains a challenge. 
These assume high levels of strategic 
and organisational coherence both 
within and outside the state, and tight 
active compacts between the state 
and strategic stakeholders. ECSECC 
requires to work closely with the OTP 
to ensure a stronger integrating centre 
of government in the province. 

As we strengthen the centre of 
government, we also need to assemble 

new compacts through which the 
various inter-governmental organs of 
state and other stakeholders can hold 
each other mutually accountable for 
agreed-upon outcomes. This suggests 
a more active model of compact 
between the state and relevant 
communities of development practice 
anchored in a common vision for social 
and economic justice. 

The recently adopted vision and 
provincial development plan (PDP) 
serve as a platform for mobilisation of 
stakeholders behind a common vision. 
The PDP offers a fresh opportunity 
for the province to unite and drive a 
common and inclusive agenda. This 
therefore calls for the popularisation 
of the PDP, cascading of the PDP 
and its programming into concrete 
programmes. Most importantly, there is 
need to ensure alignment of the other 
provincial, sectoral and departmental 
plans to the PDP so as to ensure that 
it is implemented and resourced. 
ECSECC will work with the OTP in 
cascading the PDP and in ensuring that 
other development plans going forward 
articulate with the PDP.
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organisation held a series of strategic 
planning sessions to review its 
performance and to implement the new 
Strategic Plan of the organisation. These 
planning sessions continually review 
ECSECC’s place in the development 
planning terrain in the Eastern Cape and 
South Africa. This helps in ensuring that 
ECSECC sets appropriate priorities for 
the year. The shareholder of ECSECC, 
the OTP, is always engaged by the 
organisation with a view to ensuring 
alignment of expectations and priorities. 

The financial year 2014-2015 saw the 
first year of the implementation of the 
new five year Strategic Plan of ECSECC 
with its service excellence model and 
a new organisational structure that 
is aligned to the new strategy. All of 
these have been implemented through 
the Annual Performance Plan and the 
Annual Operational Plan. The organisation 
continues to put in place mechanisms 
to improve organisational effectiveness, 
programme alignment and the building of 
synergies between programmes. 

ECSECC continues to provide a 
strategic crossing point with various 

players in the development space to 
ensure alignment of policy, strategy 
and implementation. ECSECC in the 
recent past has developed capabilities 
not only for planning but for programme 
conceptualisation and implementation 
facilitation and oversight. 

ECSECC continues to play an even 
greater role in strategic compacting 
for the implementation of the new 
provincial development plan through 
supporting implementation through 
project development and planning. As an 
enabler and facilitator for development 
planning and partnerships, ECSECC will 
bring to bear its capabilities on practical 
programmes and projects, not only in the 
sphere of strategy development. 

ECSECC will also continue to 
strengthen its knowledge management 
capacity so as to provide evidence 
based policy and strategic advice to 
the provincial government and its 
stakeholders. This is vital as ideas must 
resonate with practice - arise from 
practical experience, as well as from 
research and literature. 
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key polICy 
DeVelopMentS 
anD leGISlatIVe 
CHanGeS
The major development in the period 
under review was the adoption of 
Provincial Development Plan as a 
response to the National Development 
Plan with specific priorities addressing 
provincial development imperatives. 
ECSECC’s strategic direction is in 
response to the NDP and PDP. The 
province also adopted a Provincial 
Medium Term Strategic Framework 
which sets out priorities for the term of 
the current administration.

StrateGIC outCoMe orIenteD GoalS
In 2014 - 15 financial year, ECSECC operated four 
interrelated five year strategic goals as contained in 
its strategic plan which are:

to FaCIlItate eFFeCtIVe anD eFFICIent aDMInIStratIon, 
GoVernanCe anD knoWleDGe ManaGeMent.1

2

3

4

to Support DeVelopMent polICy, StrateGy anD plannInG In 
tHe eaStern Cape proVInCe.

to be a SoCIo-eConoMIC knoWleDGe Hub For tHe eaStern 
Cape proVInCe.

to Create platForMS For MultI-StakeHolDer partICIpatIon 
anD partnerSHIpS



proGraMMe 1
operatIonS, FInanCe, Corporate SerVICeS anD knoWleDGe ManaGeMent 

This programme aims to contribute to the attainment of goal number 
1 and 2 in the five-year strategy. The purpose of the programme 
is the development and implementation of effective and efficient 
ECSECC management and governance systems and procedures.

proGraMMe 2
eConoMIC GoVernanCe 

The aim of this programme is to shift the economic 
development path of the Eastern Cape so that poverty 
is progressively reduced and ECSECC’s vision is 
eventually achieved.

The peripheral nature of our economy and its 
relative under-performance are well understood. 
The programme seeks to set out clear statements 
of the priorities over the planning period, and what 
can realistically be achieved to heighten economic 
development in the province. 

proGraMMe 3 
InFraStruCture GoVernanCe

This programme aims to 
respond to ECSECC's mandate 

to mobilise and coordinate 
stakeholders to drive a common 
provincial infrastructure agenda 

in the Eastern Cape. This is 
done to improve integration of 
infrastructure planning across 

sectors and spheres  
of government. 

proGraMMe 4
StrateGIC GoVernanCe Support

The aim of this programme is to support the Office of 
the Premier, Provincial Government departments and 
Local Government in the field of development planning. 
This will include providing support to the centre 
of government in advancing a capable developmental 
state across spheres, buttressed by a strong 
integrating, planning and executing centre. This also 
includes transitioning provincial municipalities from 
the lower levels of the local government maturity to 
becoming developmental local government.

More on paGe

More on paGe

22

27

More on paGe

More on paGe

25

29



proGraMMe 6
HIV/aIDS

ECSECC is housing the Eastern Cape AIDS Council (ECAC) Secretariat. The 
Eastern Cape AIDS Council is a multi-sectoral body representing government 

departments and civil society formations. The purpose of this programme 
is to assist the province to effectively manage the province’s response to 

HIV/AIDS, TB and STIs. This programme also focuses on conducting the 
secretariat work for the Eastern Cape AIDS Council.

proGraMMe 5
HuMan reSourCe DeVelopMent

The purpose of this 
programme is to conceptualise 
and facilitate measures to 
improve quality in education 
and training. The programme 
provides strategic and 
technical support to the EC 
HRD Council.
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eCSeCC operateS tHe FolloWInG proGraMMe StruCture



proGraMMe 1
operatIonS, FInanCe, 
Corporate SerVICeS anD 
knoWleDGe ManaGeMent 
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oVerall proGraMMe perForManCe
The programme in the period under review focused on the  
following deliverables:

The Board met all its statutory requirements as well as its sub-
committees. The statutory bodies met as planned and met their statutory 
obligations with a particular focus on the following issues:

APP and Budget Approval: The Board approved the APP and Budget 
for the new financial year as expected. The APP was subsequently 
submitted to the OTP, Legislature and Treasury.

All sub-committees of the Board met as expected.  

The CEO also approved the Annual Operational Plan of the 
organisation after a series of engagements were held with staff. 

Successfully held an AGM and have inducted the new leadership and 
Board members.

In the period under review a risk assessment for 2014/15 was conducted 
under the facilitation of our Internal Auditors, Rakoma & Associates. 

Performance evaluations covering the 2013 /2014 financial year were 
done and a summary performance evaluation report was developed 
covering all programmes

Performance Agreements for the 2014 /2015 financial year were signed 
by all employees at the beginning of the financial year as planned. 

The training and studies plan for ECSECC was reviewed based on the 
performance review reports and recommendations from managers. 

The knowledge management unit held a series of workshops in districts 
on the socio-economic profiles of the districts. These workshops were 
held in collaboration with the COGTA EC. 

The following knowledge management products were produced  
by ECSECC:

A perspective on the EC Matric results.

Service delivery and conditions of living: 2013 General Household 
Survey report

Quarterly Economic update (Quarter 4 2013, Quarter 1-3 2014)

Publication of 9x district socio-economic profiles

GCIS: Phase 1 - Data update, collection, verification and database 
conversions and clean-up

Facelift and update of ECSECC website is on-going work.

Support to the OTP’s TSu work - to this end Diagnostic Studies for the 
Departments of Health and Education have been completed. 

Provided research support and facilitation to the Department of Human 
Settlements on the area of Integrated Human Settlements.

The ICT policy, strategy and governance architecture were developed and 
approved by the Board.

The following institutions were supported with data and trend analysis:

Amahlathi Local Municipality: Information For IDP Document.

Rand International Capital/Development Finance And Economics: 
Information on Manufacturing Sub-Sector.

Mnquma Local Municipality: Information for IDP Document.

Tshani Consulting: Information for Matatiele Local Municipality.

purpoSe oF tHe proGraMMe 
The purpose of the programme is the 
development and implementation 
of effective and efficient ECSECC 
management and governance systems 
and procedures. New to the 2014-
19 Strategic Plan is the integration 
of knowledge management into the 
operations function of the organisation. 

proGraMMe objeCtIVeS
The programme contributes to the 
attainment of the ECSECC goals 
through focusing on the following 
objectives:

An effective and efficient and 
development oriented governance 
and management;

Effective and efficient operations and 
knowledge management.
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annual perForManCe InDICatorS anD tarGetS For tHe proGraMMe

Performance inDicatorS rePortinG 
PerioD

annual 
tarGet

actual 
Performance

Variance eXPlanation

1.1 Number of meetings of functioning governance structures that 
meet all systems requirements 

Quarterly 20 21 There was a special Board 
meeting convened to deal with 
emergency matters of the Board

1.2 Number of integrated risk management strategies implemented Quarterly 1 2 There was a need for an 
information session on 
risk management to create 
awareness amongst staff

1.3 Number of monthly cash flow management reports Monthly 12 12

1.4 An unqualified audit outcome with no matters of emphasis in 
pursuit of good corporate governance

Annually 1 1

1.5 Number of interventions implemented to simplify integrated 
financial systems.

Annually 1 1

1.6 Number of interventions implemented to improve HR system Quarterly 2 2

1.7 Number of employees above level 4 with signed PMDS 
agreement before 01 April

Annually 100% 100%

1.8 Number of employee resignations per year Annually <5% <5%

1.9 Number of automated business systems implemented Quarterly 1 1

1.10 Number of ICT system interventions Quarterly 2 2

1.11 Number of management reports on implementation of ECSECC 
projects to monitor the performance of the Entity

Quarterly 4 4

1.12 Number of systems implemented to strengthen monitoring, 
reporting and evaluation

Quarterly 1 1

1.13 Number of spatial development systems developed Quarterly 1 1

1.14 Number of knowledge management systems implemented Quarterly 1 1

1.15 No of knowledge products generated Quarterly 8 13 More publications came 
through the pipeline from 
programmes due to emphasis 
on the implementation of the 
Service Excellence Model

1.16 Number of ECSECC projects supported through active project 
team participation 

Quarterly 4 4

1.17 Number of research quality tools developed and implemented Quarterly 1 1



proGraMMe 2
eConoMIC GoVernanCe 
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Spatial Development - the following papers were developed:

Economics of Education and Training.

Review of Skills Development Strategy.

Agriculture, Land, Water:

Developed a proposal on the agricultural policy advisory group for 
the Eastern Cape. 

As part of knowledge generation for the programme a number 
of key players were met to establish networks and broaden our 
understanding on the key sectors of the economy. 

Dialogues and Public Engagements - the following dialogues and public 
engagements were held:

A business breakfast with the NMB Business Chamber on the 
Industrial Policy Action Plan (IPAP 2015/16).

A dialogue in East London (ECESCC offices) on Rebuilding Capacity 
for Economic Growth in the EC Metros.

Rebuilding Civil Society in Hard Times.

Land Restitution and Farm Worker Rights, Land Reform: the land 
shall be shared.

A dialogue on development partnerships presented by Andrew 
Boraine from the Western Cape Economic Development Partnership.

A Dialogue by Professor Eddie Webster on labour after globalisation: 
traditional and new sources of power.

The programme co-hosted the “Labour Market Review 2014” seminar 
with the Neil Aggett Labour Studies (NALSu)

A seminar on “Irrigation Agriculture in the EC: future development 
trajectories”

A seminar on smallholder development in the EC: current status 
and possible strategies. These topics tackle the issues of irrigation 
agriculture, revitalisation of rural economy and agricultural employment.

purpoSe oF tHe proGraMMe 
The aim of this programme is to shift 
the economic development path of 
the Eastern Cape so that poverty is 
progressively reduced and ECSECC’s 
vision is eventually achieved.

The peripheral nature of our economy 
and its relative under-performance are 
well understood and need not be re-
elaborated here. What is required is a 
clear statement of the priorities of this 
programme over the next five years, 
and what can realistically be achieved, 
given available resources and the 
mission and mandate of ECSECC.

proGraMMe objeCtIVeS
The programme contributes to the 
attainment of the ECSECC goals through 
focusing on the following objective:

To support economic development 
policy, strategy and planning in the 
Eastern Cape Province.

 

oVerall proGraMMe perForManCe
The programme in the period under review mainly focused on the 
following deliverables:

The programme focused on the provision of support to the Eastern Cape 
Planning Commission through the development of the Economic Chapter 
of the PDP. This was achieved through convening of various dialogues and 
meetings with stakeholders in the sector as well as a working session 
with the Department of Economic Development and Environmental 
Affairs and Tourism. There were also various sessions held with the 
commissioner responsible for Economic Development.

The programme also developed five flagship programmes in the context 
of the PDP Vision 2030, namely, Ocean Economy, EPWP transformation, 
Irrigation Agriculture, EC Energy Hub, EC Logistics.
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Responding to De-Industrialisation:

The programme also responded 
to companies experiencing 
challenges and the following 
companies were visited: Time 
Clothing, Chris Hani District 
Cooperative Centre, Yebo 
Tanks, Continental Tyres, Eltex, 
Queenstown Seating and 
Essentials Amathole, Ouma 
Rusk; Paramount Milling; Seating 
Queenstown; Eltex; Eco Pullets; 
Motorland.

There was also an engagement with 
SACTWu on the Youth Wage Subsidy 

The programme continued to 
participate in BKCOB Infrastructure 
Meetings (BCMM). 

Facilitated the BCM development 
strategy workshop and developed 
a paper on BCM Economic 
Development.

Contributed and made input in the 
DRDAR strategic plan.

annual perForManCe InDICatorS anD tarGetS For tHe proGraMMe
Performance inDicatorS rePortinG 

PerioD
annual 
tarGet

actual 
Performance

Variance eXPlanation

2.1 Number of economic chapters/strategies developed Quarterly 2 2

2.2 Number of strategic projects conceptualised and business  
case generated for Vision 2030 and PSF

Quarterly

2.3 Number of development strategies facilitated or developed Quarterly 3 3

2.4 Number of position papers developed for large economic  
projects and economic policy adjustments developed

Quarterly 4 4

2.5 Number of dialogues/seminars/public engagements/ 
stakeholder forums held 

Quarterly 4 9 Dialogues were prioritised in 
order to create platforms for 
reflection especially in the rapid 
changing policy landscape in 
the country - had to be therefore 
responsive so as to unpack 
critical development issues 
facing the province



proGraMMe 3
InFraStruCture 
GoVernanCe
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purpoSe oF tHe proGraMMe 
This programme has been established 
as a stand-alone programme to respond 
to ECSECC's mandate to mobilise 
and coordinate stakeholders to drive a 
common provincial infrastructure agenda 
in the Eastern Cape. This is done to 
improve integration of infrastructure 
planning across sectors and spheres 
of government.

proGraMMe objeCtIVeS
The programme contributes to the 
attainment of the ECSECC goals through 
focusing on the following objective:

Develop and drive a common 
provincial infrastructure agenda to 
support socio-economic development.

oVerall proGraMMe perForManCe
The programme in the period under review focused on the following 
deliverables:

PICC Studies Conducted and Reporting:

A Review of the Information and Communication Technology initiatives 
in the Eastern Cape was conducted. The study was meant to give the 
province the profile of ICT initiatives taking place in the Eastern Cape 
with a view to identifying gaps in terms of what could be done in the 
context of the PICC to accelerate the programme to bridge the digital 
divide in the Eastern Cape.

The programme is supporting the Department of Transport to 
develop Mthatha Airport Strategy towards a complete Infrastructure 
Project packaged for the mobilisation of investment funding for the 
development of the Airport as the next urban node of Mthatha as well 
as a Logistics Hub.

A Strategic Review of the Mzimvubu Multipurpose Development 
was conducted. The study was meant to improve the Eastern 
Cape understanding of the initiative and also unpack the provincial 
perspective to this national strategic project.

The Eastern Cape Energy Sector Study was completed and adopted.

The programme also generated the quarterly update report on the 
PICC with particular focus on the SIPS that have a potential impact 
and footprint in the province.

PICC Task Team Meetings met as planned for purposes of information 
sharing and updates on PICC related projects in the province.

Mzimvubu Multipurpose Development and Governance Framework: 

Following meetings between the Eastern Cape Premier and the 
Minister of Water and Sanitation, and follow-up meetings between the 
DG in the Office of the Premier and the DG of Water and Sanitation, it 
was agreed that a clear governance framework needs to be developed 
to ensure the initiative is championed, resourced, and implemented 
as an integrated multi-purpose programme. This, it was felt, would 
make a more compelling case for public investment, would streamline 
communication and stakeholder engagement, as well as significantly 
enhance local and regional development impact. The Governance 
Framework has been developed and it outlines the governance 
arrangements that require to be put in place to ensure aligned and 
value-adding cross-departmental and cross-sphere planning, budgeting, 
implementation, communication, and stakeholder management.

An Mzimvubu Multipurpose Development workshop was held 
and its purpose was to provide a platform to share information on 
infrastructure projects with affected district municipalities and to give 
an update on the Mzimvubu Development Project.
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annual perForManCe InDICatorS anD tarGetS For tHe proGraMMe
Performance inDicatorS rePortinG 

PerioD
annual 
tarGet

actual 
Performance

Variance eXPlanation

3.1 Number of PICC stakeholder forums held Quarterly 12 12

3.2 Number of PICC provincial reports developed Quarterly 4 4

3.3 Number of PICC studies/reports produced Quarterly 4 4

3.4 Number of PICC business cases Quarterly 3 3

Access to Information & Communication Technology: 

In the period under review ICT co-ordinating meetings have taken 
place namely the ICT Stakeholder Forum and the Skills and Localisation 
Stakeholder Forum. The focus of the meetings was around the 
preparation of the Broadband roll-out and planning in the province. The 
ICT forum also considered the E-Learning action plan arising from the 
E-Learning summit that was convened by the MEC for Education. In 
addition, the forum considered a report from visits to Tshwane and the 
Western Cape that were aimed at learning about their WIFI initiatives 
so as to inform the approach to be followed by the Eastern Cape.

The site visits were all arranged by the SIP-15 office at CSIR and 
facilitated by ECSECC and the Eastern Cape’s Provincial Department 
of Education. The aim of the site visit was to assess whether the 
Telkom project to connect schools has achieved its objectives and 
the impact that connected schools has in the learning and teaching 
environment as well as to assess the broadband connectivity that 
is provided to the schools, i.e. is the school connected at all, is the 
school able to use the connection, are the end user devices (EuDs) 
supplied to the schools? A report was compiled on the site visits. .



proGraMMe 4
StrateGIC GoVernanCe 
Support
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oVerall proGraMMe perForManCe
The programme in the period under review focused on the 
following deliverables:

Eastern Cape Planning Commission support:

Finalised chapters on economy, education, human settlements and 
institutional capabilities.

Facilitated ECPC Commissioners working session.

Facilitated ECPC Technical team writers retreat.

Supported ECPC in presentation to Premier's Stakeholder Event, 
EXCO Lekgotla and Stakeholder meeting with EC universities.

Compiled draft zero of PDP for consideration by ECPC integration team.

Facilitated ECPC district engagement sessions.

Development of flagship programmes in the economy and institutional 
capabilities chapters.

Made presentations on behalf of the ECPC in various platforms of 
government and civil society.

Facilitated the editing process of the document and supported the 
ECPC in its planning process for district engagements.

Municipal Support:

Nelson Mandela Bay Metropolitan Municipality (NMBM):

Facilitation of the Strategic Conversation of the Executive 
Management. The City Manager and his mostly new Executive 
Managers sought to engage in an exercise that appreciates strengths, 
weakness and opportunities for their roles and functions and 
especially how they can urgently and immediately turnaround those 
identified administrative and management challenges and blockages

Supported NMBM with the implementation of the outcomes 
of the Presidential Visit of April 2014, in particular negotiations 
with Organised Business on Tariffs & Incentive Packages to grow 
investment and the facilitation of engagements with National 
Government to secure funding and raise capital for critical economic 
infrastructure and the improvement of public participation process 
towards developing a credible budget to realise the growth and 
development imperatives of the NMBM. To this end the following 
has been achieved:

Developed Terms of Engagement for the NMBM//NMBBC//HEuG 
(High Energy users Group) to start structured negotiations.

Facilitated the signing of the Terms of Engagement by all  
Parties involved. 

Facilitated the signing of the Memorandum of understanding 
between NMBM/NMBBC/HEuG (High Energy users Group). 

A business case development to take forward the commitments 
made in the Mou by the parties.

Alfred Nzo District Municipality:

Facilitated Rural Development Summit of various stakeholders. The 
overall purpose of this project is facilitation of the Rural Development 
Summit of various stakeholders aimed at establishing partnership for 
implementation of packaged projects.

purpoSe oF tHe proGraMMe 
The aim of this programme is to 
support the Office of the Premier, 
Provincial Government Departments 
and Local Government in the field of 
development planning. This will include 
providing support to the centre of 
government in advancing a capable 
developmental state across spheres, 
buttressed by a strong integrating 
centre. This also includes transitioning 
provincial municipalities from the lower 
levels of the local government maturity 
model to becoming developmental 
local government.

proGraMMe objeCtIVeS
The programme contributes to the 
attainment of the ECSECC goals through 
focusing on the following objective:

Support the building of a capable 
developmental state
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 OR Tambo District Municipality (ORTDM): 

Supported ORTDM with review and adoption of the IDP, the 
Oversight Model [Roles-Responsibility and Delegations Framework] 
in line with the adopted Macro Organisational Structure towards 
achieving planned ORTDM strategic targets. The project goal of 
reviewing and development and adoption by Council in june 2014 of 
the Role-Responsibility, Standing Rules and Terms of Reference for 
Council Committees has been achieved and this has been achieved 
through the facilitation of the Multi-Disciplinary Task Team on the 
Oversight Model: Roles-Responsibilities, Standing Rules and ToRs 
as well as through facilitating a Council Workshop on the Roles-
Responsibilities and Delegations Framework.

As part of supporting the organisational renewal and development 
process in the district, in the period under review we supported 
implementation improvement of the Governance Framework 
i.e. the Roles & Responsibilities for committees of council. A 
workshop was successfully conducted in this regard. We also 
supported the development of good Governance Framework 
practices such as the delegations framework development, the 
separation of powers, the development of macro structure for 
council and the design of committees. 

Buffalo City Municipality:

Facilitated stakeholder engagement session by Buffalo City Metropolitan 
Municipality for its Municipal Growth and Development Strategy.

Amahlathi Local Municipality:

Supported and facilitated their strategic planning session

King Sabata Dalindyebo Municipality: 

Supported the Governance & Communication Workstream and 
to this end we have successfully facilitated a workshop of the 
workstream.

Facilitated the strategic planning session aimed at working towards 
the development of the IDP.

Support to Provincial Departments - the programme supported the 
following departments:

OTP: 

Supported OTP in the process of developing the Youth Development 
Strategy. The focus was amongst others on the development of the 
youth development index as a mechanism to measure the youth 
development in the province. The facilitation and hosting of the 
Eastern Cape Youth development Indaba. About 200 young people 
from the 8 districts attended the consultative session - a platform 
for young people to engage the Draft Youth Development Strategy. 
Inputs from the Indaba were incorporated into the strategy.

Planning Community of Practice Launching workshop: OTP 
and ECSECC co-hosted the launch of the Policy and Strategic 
Management practitioners in the province. The platform is a 
community of practice intended to reflect and share information 
and practices on research, policy development, planning and 
monitoring and evaluation. 

Provincial Legislature with the facilitation of their Petitions and Public 
Participation Strategic Planning Session and the development of 
the Petitions and Public Participation Strategy and the committees 
Strategic Planning Session.

Department of Transport: 

Mthatha Airport Strategy has 
now been concluded and was 
presented to the Executive 
Council.

Mayibuye Transport Corporation 
(MTC) with the development of a 
5 year Strategic Plan, 2015-16  
APP, Policies Review, and 
Development of SoPs. We are in a 
process of winding up our hands-
on support to Mayibuye Transport 
Corporation to a new form of 
support that will be largely policy 
and strategy related.

Department of Human 
Settlements:

Stakeholder Management 
Strategy Concept Development & 
facilitation of actual Stakeholder 
Strategy Development.

Department of Social  
Development (DoSDSP):

Anti-Poverty Strategy Reflections 
and facilitation of Planning & 
Reporting 

Cooperative Governance and 
Traditional Affairs:

District Coordination Model & 
Provincial Planning Framework  
and facilitated the Public 
Participation and Petitions 
Seminar. Facilitated a Capacity 
Building Workshop of 
Amandlambe Traditional Authority.

PDP Presentations:

Made PDP presentations 
to various organisations as 
per the request of the ECPC 
commissioners. Presentations to 
SALGA planning and governance 
working group and SALGA 
SPLuMA Roundtable on PDP 
and provincial infrastructure 
were made. Presentations to the 
EC NGO Coalition were made as 
well as to the workshop of the 
EC Legislature.
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annual perForManCe InDICatorS anD tarGetS For tHe proGraMMe
Performance inDicatorS rePortinG 

PerioD
annual 
tarGet

actual 
Performance

Variance eXPlanation

4.1 Number of strategies developed/reviewed Quarterly 2 2

4.2 Number of departments supported with strategic planning Quarterly 3 6 Increased demand due to the 
beginning of the new term of 
administration.

4.3 Number of metropolitan and district municipalities with 
development plans developed

Quarterly 6 6

4.4 Number of impact evaluation studies conducted Quarterly 1 1

4.5 Number of platforms for reflection, sharing and learning in the 
public sector created

Quarterly 1 1



proGraMMe 5
HuMan reSourCe 
DeVelopMent



34    2014 / 2015 eCSeCC annual report

Post-Schooling Education:

A colloquium on community colleges in partnership with the ECPC, 
CIPSET and Chris Hani District Municipality was successfully held in 
Queenstown.

Work Integrated Learning - introduced a Cost-benefit and Quality 
analysis measurement instrument as a consultative tool to promote 
innovation and quality in apprenticeship training. This was achieved 
through the following:

A Business Breakfast which was held in East London, mainly 
attended by business and appropriate stakeholders.

Follow-up workshops were conducted with companies to assist 
them navigate the instrument. Follow-ups were conducted, mostly 
telephonic due to distance (companies based in provinces outside 
the EC) with companies to assist them navigate the instrument. 17 
companies have successfully self-evaluated the Cost-benefit and 
Quality of apprenticeships.

Continuous support to companies (VW) to institutionalise CBQ to 
use it to feed into their organisational planning processes.

Support to WSu - supported Walter Sisulu university Strategic Planning 
Workshop and Post-Workshop Processes and are now helping the 
university with the write up and finalisation of its five year strategic plan

Labour Market Interventions:

Skills Planning - engaged the Department of Labour on the uIF labour 
activation programme.

Infrastructure Development Skills Planning - the programme continued 
to work with DHET to assess capacity of FET colleges for production 
of skills required by SIP projects in the province. As part of exploring 
an exit strategy for the current PPP (artisan) project at BCC with the 
purpose of positioning the project as one of the employment creation 
initiatives in the province, the programme entered into exploratory 
discussions with the Eastern Cape coLab and King Hintsa FET College 
on possibilities of partnership for e-skills training of final year students 
and youths from the catchment areas of King Hintsa FET College. The 
training will provide the students and youths with employability skills 
to increase their likelihood of absorption into the labour market and/or 
to start their own businesses.

In an effort to determine the skills needs of PICC SIPs interventions 
in the province, in partnership with the PICC Secretariat and the 
PSDF, we compiled a basic database that details enrolment rates, 
programme offerings and throughput rates for all TVET Colleges in 
the Province. The database was compiled to assess the extent to 
which TVET Colleges in the province can be responsive to the skills 
requirements of SIPs Projects.

ECSECC & Nelson Mandela Bay Business Chamber joint Business 
Breakfast was held. The theme of the Breakfast was - “building  
the industrialist of the future”. This was inspired by the country’s  
resolve to re-industrialise the economy and build in that context 
black industrialists.

The provincial Human Resource Development Council:

The HRD Council met its statutory obligations and some of the 
key issues it discussed for implementation facilitation by the HRD 
Secretariat are as follows:

There needs to be a side focused discussion with timelines attached, 
with SETAs focusing on agricultural skills especially in communities 
with agricultural potential.

There needs to be stronger visibility and participation of the business 
sectors in the various fora of skills development, as they are key in 
providing the Work Integrated Learning.

oVerall proGraMMe 
perForManCe
The programme mainly focused on 
the following deliverables in the period 
under review:

Basic Education: 

Developed the Education Chapter 
of the PDP as well as co-
ordinated the education working 
group activities with various 
stakeholders of the sector.

Consulted with implementing 
agencies on the core ideas 
to be taken forward from the 
PDP. Provided support to the 
department on Language-
in-education Policy. We also 
supported the department with 
the reconceptualisation of the 
District Education Forums in line 
with the PDP propositions on the 
envisaged decentralisation model 
for education provisioning as well 
as taking forward the notion of 
making education a societal matter.

Engagement session held with the 
ED Forum on the PDP goals on 
Early Childhood Development.

Supported the DoE in developing a 
district development strategy.

Matric Results: Published an 
analysis of matric results as part of 
labour market analysis.

purpoSe oF tHe proGraMMe 
The purpose of this programme is to 
enhance human capital formation in the 
Eastern Cape through conceptualising 
and facilitating measures to improve 
quality in education and training. The 
programme provides strategic and 
technical support to EC HRD Council. 
The purpose of the programme.

proGraMMe objeCtIVeS
The programme contributes to the 
attainment of the ECSECC goals through 
focusing on the following objective:

To conceptualise and facilitate 
measures to improve quality in 
education and training in the 
Eastern Cape.
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The RRCC structure needs to be revitalised. It was disbanded too 
soon and as such there is no structure in the province to assist 
companies in a coordinated way that are affected by retrenchments.

The Training Layoff Scheme needs to be re-thought to make provision 
for the re-skilling of retrenched workers, so that they can re-enter the 
labour market.

Recommendations from the renewable energy study must be 
projectised and partners identified for the implementation of the 
recommendations.

There is a need for a database of skills that are in short supply, 
currently and in the future, so that the HEIs & TVETCs can plan 
pipeline accordingly.

There is a need to create a five year agenda of the HRD Council and 
on the establishment of sub-structures to drive the council work. 

Supported ECNGOC to host a business breakfast on Strategic Corporate 
Social Investment as part of our work in supporting communities of 
development practice. 

annual perForManCe InDICatorS anD tarGetS For tHe proGraMMe

Performance inDicatorS rePortinG 
PerioD

annual 
tarGet

actual 
Performance

Variance eXPlanation

5.1 Number of materials developed for teacher development Quarterly 1 1

5.2 Number of position papers on teacher development Quarterly

5.3 Number of position papers on MTBBE Quarterly 1 1

5.4 Number of support interventions on MTBBE facilitated Quarterly

5.5  Number of position papers on Literacy-Numeracy development Quarterly

5.6 Number of interventions supported for Literacy-Numeracy 
development

Quarterly

5.7 Number of education chapters/strategies developed Quarterly 1 1

5.8 Number of post schooling initiatives facilitated Quarterly 2 2

5.9 Number of sector skills support programmes designed Quarterly 1 1

5.10 Number of NEETs initiatives designed Quarterly 1 1

5.11 Number of labour market research reports produced Quarterly 2 2

5.12 Number of labour market position papers produced Quarterly 1 1

5.13 Number of HRD related programmes implemented to support 
communities of development practice

Quarterly 1 1



proGraMMe 6
HIV/aIDS
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purpoSe oF tHe proGraMMe 
The purpose of this programme is to 
assist the province to effectively manage 
the province’s response to HIV/AIDS, TB 
and STIs. This programme also focuses 
on conducting the secretariat work for 
the Eastern Cape AIDS Council.

proGraMMe objeCtIVeS
The programme contributes to the 
attainment of the ECSECC goals through 
focusing on the following objectives:

Reduce the rate of new HIV and 
TB infections using combination 
prevention methods and a multi-
sectorial approach.

Protect human rights, end all unlawful 
discrimination and inequality among 
people affected by HIV.

Functionality of AIDS councils in the 
Eastern Cape.

oVerall proGraMMe 
perForManCe
In the period under review the 
programme focused on the following 
deliverables:

World Aids day commemorations: 

The World Aids Day was held on 
the 1st December. It was attended 
by the Premier and five MEC’s, two 
Deputy Ministers, Speaker of the 
provincial Legislature, CEO of MixIT 
and the Chairperson of the Transnet 
Board. The World Aids Day took a 
different character and form and 
focused on the following activities:

Visited Masizakhe Orphanage in 
Mdantsane with the delegation 
from Transnet and Dept. of Public 
Enterprise to handover the  
R1, 7 million grant donation 
towards the building of the dining 
hall and the kitchen.

Connected 10 computer tablets 
with applications for mathematics 
that have been donated by Deputy 
Minister of Communications. This 
was done in partnership with the 
social network company MixIT. 

Visited two health care facilities at Nontyatyambo and Empilweni 
Gompo to engage the public clients on health care services. The 
Premier, and five MEC’s together with two Deputy Ministers handed 
over suggestion boxes to enhance the public health care services in 
particular regarding stigma, discrimination and human rights violations. 

Visited the Samaritan Care Centre hospice to donate linen  
savers, cleaning material and gloves and the Deputy Minister of 
Public enterprise Hon. Magwanishe donated from his personal  
funds an amount of R20 000.00 in support of the noble work done 
by the hospice.

Donated 1 500 sanitary towels to 4 previously disadvantaged schools 
from Duncan Village to mitigate that young girls not miss out on 
school during their monthly period due to the embarrassment of not 
having sanitary towels. 

Donated 20 soccer balls to the same schools as part of “Kick Out TB 
Campaign” in partnership with the Department of Health.

Concluded the day with a dialogue that engaged the public and the 
political principals at Gompo Hall. The purpose of the dialogue was 
to share the findings of the door to door campaign conducted prior 
the WAD at Duncan Village which focused mainly on issues of health 
care and stigma in public health facilities.

Key Populations Strategy: 

ECAC held a series of consultation workshops as part of a process to 
develop a provincial strategy that can help the province to specifically 
reduce HIV among key populations.

Held two landmark workshops for prevention in the province. One was 
targeting MSM and the other sex workers. The workshop looked at 
programmes that are implemented by key stakeholders in the province 
with the view of integrating key populations work in the provincial HIV 
response. Also developed a discussion document for sex workers which 
was presented to the council for the decriminalisation of sex work in the 
province and to initiate a debate on this topic for the province.

The discussion paper on sex work was presented to the SALGA PEC 
and Sub-committee for health in order to initiate the same discussion 
within municipalities.

ECAC hosted the last workshop for sex workers to build on the work 
of the two previous workshops. The main purpose of the workshops 
was to identify together with organisations that work in this space the 
key priorities for the strategy. The workshop identified the following 
areas as the key priorities for the sex workers as part of the key 
populations strategy:

Communication messages for clients on the potential for  
condom usage;

Lack of appropriate prevention tools in the public health care facilities;

Policy related issues relating to the decriminalisation of sex work;

Human Rights issues;

Capacity building for health care providers;

Awareness raising happened on 1 national and four community  
radio stations.

Youth and HIV/Aids:

A consultation session was held with representatives from different 
youth structures as part of a process of understanding HIV drivers 
amongst the youth.

Conducted a condom expo and condom distribution in partnership 
with WSu.
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Two consultative meetings have been held with Commission for 
Gender Equality and the university of Fort Hare in terms of what 
measures can be taken to eliminate stigma and discrimination 
resulting from HIV/AIDS and TB.

Conducted one workshop and developed proposed interventions for 
stigma reduction in OR Tambo. A six months plan of action for stigma 
reduction was also developed.

A consultant was appointed in conjunction with GIZ and the draft plan 
developed for implementation.

Nelson Mandela Day HIV/AIDS Legacy Projects - conducted a 
workshop with support groups of people living with HIV to look at 
different support group’s models and ways of empowering people 
living with HIV.

Facilitated a workshop for women in Alfred Nzo focusing on gender 
and HIV. The objective of the workshop was to develop a district plan 
for empowering women on their rights in terms of HIV and TB.

As a result of a talk by ECAC on a radio talk show a rape victim 
came forth to disclose that she had been raped and that she had not 
reported it to SAPS. ECAC offered support and encouraged her to 
lay charges against the perpetrator and facilitated assistance from 
the Department of Social Development for counselling support to 
the victim and family, which they are receiving. The perpetrator is 
currently in prison and was denied bail. 

Back to School Campaign

 The Department of Communications organised a Back to School 
Campaign in the Eastern Cape. The Department partnered with ECAC 
on one of the school visits, focussing on teenage pregnancy and 
HIV education. This event was held at Cunningham High School in 
Butterworth. ECAC organised focused group discussions and a public 
dialogue with young people on issues of teenage pregnancy, HIV and 
general life skills. The Department offered 29 laptops and a cyber-lab 
for the students to connect with other schools. Students were also 
offered sponsorships fot further education.

FDC & Drug Stock-out and Awareness Campaign: 

Engaged in awareness creation of the roll-out of the Fixed Dose 
Combination. The response to the campaign was positive. 

As part of assisting the province to ensure that eligible patients are 
migrated to the FDC and end drug stock-outs in the EC, a Public 
Information Session was held. The EC DoH developed a roll out plan 
that was presented at the ECAC meeting. The implementation of the 
plan is being monitored by ECAC. 

Partnered with the DOH and the PLWA sector to advocate for and 
educate on FDC uptake among people living with HIV.

Research on HIV incidence within the Correctional Services System:

Conducted a fact finding mission in five correctional service centres 
in the province to understand the prison HIV management process. 
Recommendations have been crafted and the process for policy 
recommendations will be initiated with SANAC and the Department 
of Correctional Services.

OVC Programme:

Conducted a workshop with various structures working with OVC’s in 
the province on basic core services for OVC’s.

With respect to OVC a meeting has been held with the major NGOs 
that work with vulnerable children and agreements were reached on 
the guidelines on the core services as prescribed by uNICEF and 
National Social Development.

Prevention through Treatment:

Conducted a symposium on 
treatment as prevention with 
nationally renowned expert on 
the topic.

Completed a desktop analysis 
on the study with clear 
recommendations.

Interventions to deal with stigma, 
discrimination and violation of 
human rights for people who are HIV 
positive:

In terms of establishing a Call 
Centre as part of interventions to 
deal with stigma, discrimination 
and violation of human rights for 
people who are HIV positive the 
following has happened:

The process has started with 
the submission of 2 proposals 
for the call centre to two 
prospective funders.

A form to report human rights 
violations has been distributed in 
Buffalo City to look at the 
violations suffered by Gay, Lesbian, 
Transgender and Intersex 
groups (Some complaints have 
been received).

A distribution and collection 
strategy development meeting 
was held on the 22 May 2014, 
with Amathole District and the 
PWHA sector. 

A process on how the complaints 
forms should be distributed, 
collated and submitted to ECAC 
has been sketched out.

A broad plan on how to eliminate 
stigma and discrimination has 
been drafted by both the Task 
Team for human rights and the 
OR Tambo District Consultative 
summit in june 2014.
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On the 25th February 2015 a 
workshop was held to discuss 
the OVC programme. The 
attendees were representatives 
of organisations working in the 
children sector. The discussions 
centered on the following issues:

Food and nutrition as a core 
service which lacks quality. A 
proposal was made that there 
must be talks with the Department 
of Education and Department of 
Social Development.

The voucher system versus the 
food parcel needs be explored.

The challenge with the 
Department of Social 
Development’s availability for 
the sector meetings and their 
commitment to the coordination 
strategy needs to be resolved.

Focus to be on empowerment  
of the NGOs on the Child  
Status Index.

At the end of each month 
organisations must forward 
reports on their activities to the 
sector representatives, based on 
the indicators that were discussed 
in September 2014 meeting.

The PSP Mid-term Review

Conducted the first consultative 
workshop for the situational analysis 
chapter of the mid-term review.

This project was about the 
assessment of the performance 
of the province on its strategic 
plan for HIV, TB and STI’s. The 
project commenced in November 
2014 with the appointment of a 
consultant through GIZ for data 
collection on key indicators and 
outcomes of the plan. In the period 
under review two consultations 
were conducted on the results 
of the PSP mid-term review. The 
draft-report was also presented at 
the council meeting and the final 
document will be discussed in 
the ECAC council meeting in May 
2015. After adoption it will go to 
EXCO by june 2015.

ECAC Governance - the following activities took place:

Council met all its statutory obligations. 

The following sub-structures met as planned and discharged their 
responsibilities:

Civil society forum.

Coordinators forum.

The annual Council strategic planning session was held at Mpekweni. 
STI’s and HIV / TB Integration formed the core discussions of the 
planning session.

Developed an MOu with EC DOH for funding on five key focus areas 
in the PSP.

A partnership with the State of Lower Saxony was established and a 
delegation from ECAC visited the State as part of an information sharing 
exercise and explore further partnership and funding possibilities.

PSP quarterly reports were developed and presented at the quarterly 
council meetings.

Conducted a public dialogue at OR Tambo on Stigma and Discrimination.  
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annual perForManCe InDICatorS anD tarGetS For tHe proGraMMe

Performance inDicatorS rePortinG 
PerioD

annual 
tarGet

actual 
Performance

Variance eXPlanation

6.1 No of Provincial prevention strategies developed, coordinated, 
monitored and implemented focusing on key populations

Annually 1 2 This was necessitated by an 
urgent need to intervene in the 
key populations

6.2 No of Policy proposals on sex education in schools, prevention of 
HIV in prisons and Liquor Act

Annually 3 3

6.3 No of interventions aimed at preventing the spread of HIV and TB 
in the Eastern Cape Province developed

Quarterly 3 4 The BCMM asked for a 
partnership in the context of the 
SA Games

6.4 No of Interventions designed to monitor and improve the 
migration of people from current treatment to FDC

Quarterly 1 2 Necessitated by a partnership 
emergence between ECAC and 
DoH

6.5 No of interventions designed to deal with adverse effects of HIV 
treatment (phamoachovigillance)

Quarterly 1 1

6.6 No of interventions developed to deal with stigma, discrimination 
and violation of human rights for people who are HIV positive

Quarterly 2 2

6.7 No of interventions developed that focus on gender related 
aspects of HIV and TB

Annually 2 3 The gravity of the situation 
necessitated that this 
intervention be made by the 
programme

6.8 No of capacity development plans developed for district AIDS 
councils 

Annually 3 4 The additional requirement 
precipitated by an urgency to 
resuscitate the NMBMM Aids 
structure

6.9 No of plans developed to fund strategic ECAC interventions Annually 1 1

6.10 No of interventions developed aimed at reducing the impact of 
HIV on children orphaned through HIV and related illnesses

Quarterly 4 4

6.11 No of research based interventions developed Quarterly 2 2

6.12 No of journal articles submitted to professional bodies Quarterly 2 2

6.13 No of PSP reviews conducted Annually 1 1

6.14 No of PSP quarterly reports submitted Quarterly 4 4

6.15 No of ECAC structures that are coordinated and functional Quarterly 4 4

6.16 No of public dialogues conducted Quarterly 4 4

6.17 No of partnerships created for the implementation of PSP Quarterly 2 3 Initiative of the DoH to 
formalise a partnership with 
ECAC
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aPProPriation main 
aPProPriation

aDjuSteD
aPProPriation

actual 
amount SPent

oVer/unDer 
eXPenDiture

ECSECC R44 818 000 R48 908 000 R45 720 000 R 3 188 000

Responsible Minister Eastern Cape Province Premier: Honourable Phumulo 
Masualle

Administering Dept. ECSECC

Accounting Officer Chief Executive Officer : Mr Andrew Murray

aIM oF Vote
The aim of this vote is to support ECSECC to achieve its Vision, Mission 
and Mandate as stated in its founding document as stated above.

eCSeCC reVenue
ECSECC is not a profit generating organisation and as such has no 
revenue streams.

eCSeCC’S eXpenDIture
ECSECC main appropriation was R48 908 000. The total expenditure for 
ECSECC during the financial year excluding commitment was R47 482 856.

tranSFer payMentS
ECSECC has made no transfer payments in the period under review.

ConDItIonal GrantS
ECSECC does not receive any conditional grants
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CapItal InVeStMent, MaIntenanCe anD aSSet 
ManaGeMent

a. CapItal InVeStMent:
ECSECC’s capital investment includes computers, furniture and fittings. 
During the 2014/15 financial year an amount of R606 204 was spent.

b. MaIntenanCe:
There was no major maintenance done during 2014/15. The actual amount 
spent on maintenance was R21 718.

C. aSSet ManaGeMent:
The purpose of asset management is to enable ECSECC to meet its 
service delivery objectives efficiently and effectively by achieving the best 
possible match of assets with programme delivery strategies. Acquisition 
and disposal were dealt with according to relevant sections in this policy. 
All assets were recorded in the asset register which was used in planning 
and budgeting and to record the information as a basis for the preparation 
of reports to Treasury including annual financial statements. 

D. CapItal InVeStMent:
ECSECC’s capital investment includes computers, furniture and fittings. 
During the 2014/15 financial year an amount of R606 204 was spent. 

e. MaIntenanCe:
There was no major maintenance done during 2014/15. The actual amount 
spent on maintenance was R21 718.

F. aSSet ManaGeMent:
The purpose of asset management is to enable ECSECC to meet its 
service delivery objectives efficiently and effectively by achieving the best 
possible match of assets with programme delivery strategies. Acquisition 
and disposal were dealt with according to relevant sections in this policy. 
All assets were recorded in the asset register which was used in planning 
and budgeting and to record the information as a basis for the preparation 
of reports to Treasury including annual financial statements. 

G. CapItal InVeStMent:
ECSECC’s capital investment includes computers, furniture and fittings. 
During the 2014/15 financial year an amount of R606 204 was spent.

H. MaIntenanCe:
There was no major maintenance done during 2014/15. The actual amount 
spent on maintenance was R21 718.

I. aSSet ManaGeMent:
The purpose of asset management is to enable ECSECC to meet its 
service delivery objectives efficiently and effectively by achieving the best 
possible match of assets with programme delivery strategies. Acquisition 
and disposal were dealt with according to relevant sections in this policy. 
All assets were recorded in the asset register which was used in planning 
and budgeting and to record the information as a basis for the preparation 
of reports to Treasury including annual financial statements. 
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MeetInGS 
attenDeD

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which ECSECC 
is directed, controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative 
requirements based on the Companies Act, corporate governance with 
regard to ECSECC is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance 
Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with the principles contained 
in the King’s Report on Corporate Governance.

Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the public 
ECSECC are responsible for corporate governance.

In the period under review the ECSECC 
Board and Management, attended the 
OTP Portfolio Committee meetings on 
the following dates:

11 july 2014

17 july 2014

30 oCtober 2014

The july meetings were called for 
purposes of presenting the Annual 
Performance Plan and the Five Year 
Strategic Plan of ECSECC. The October 
meeting was for the presentation of 
the Mid-Term and Annual Reports of 
the organisation. 

The AGSA currently performs the 
necessary audit procedures on the 
performance information to provide 
reasonable assurance in the form 
of an audit conclusion. The audit 
conclusion on the performance against 
predetermined objectives is included 
in the report to management, with 
material findings being reported under 
the Predetermined Objectives heading 
in the Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements section of the 
auditor’s report.

Refer to page 72 of the Report of the 
Auditors Report, published as Part 5: 
Financial Information.
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D tHe role oF tHe boarD 
The Board of ECSECC meets four times a year and its role is to provide 
strategic leadership to the organisation and ensure that corporate 
governance principles are adhered to. It also considers quarterly reports from 
management and oversees the overall performance of the organisation in line 
with its mandate and strategic plan.

CoMpoSItIon oF tHe boarD

IntroDuCtIon
The Eastern Cape Socio Economic 
Consultative Council is governed by a 
multi-stakeholder Board of Directors 
who account to the Premier as the 
Executive Authority. The Premier has 
delegated MEC Mlibo Qhoboshiyane as 
the Chairperson of the ECSECC Board. 
The Board of Directors are proposed by 
the six (6) stakeholder constituencies 
that make up ECSECC in terms of 
ECSECC’s Memorandum and Articles 
of Association. These stakeholder 
representatives are then elected at an 
Annual General Meeting and serve for 
two (2) years, after which they become 
eligible for re-election if proposed by 
their stakeholder constituencies. 

Each stakeholder constituency has two 
(2) representatives on the Board of 
Directors. A maximum of two additional 
Board members may be recruited onto 
the Board of Directors at the Annual 
General Meeting. 

The Board meets four times a year to 
consider reports from management and 
its sub-committees. The committees also 
meet four times a year to consider reports 
from management and perform such 
duties as delegated to it by the Board. 1Mr Hustler and Mr Holbrook are sharing a vote

boarD member StakeholDer inStitution/
orGaniSation

note/comment

MEC M. 
Qhoboshiyane 
(Chairperson)

Provincial 
Government 

Premier’s 
Representative

MEC M. 
Qhoboshiyane 
replaced MEC S. 
Gqobana

Mr M. Sogoni Provincial 
Government

Office of the Premier Mr M. Sogoni left 
his employ as of  
31 December 2014 
& new DG was not 
appointed until  
the end of the 
financial year

Dr S. Mabizela Higher Education Rhodes University Prof T. Mayekiso 
resigned & awaiting 
Higher Education 
to appoint 
replacement

Prof T. Mayekiso Higher Education NMMU

Mr B. Dyasopu Organised Labour COSATU Mr M. Toyis and 
Mr B. Dyasopu 
replaced 
Mr M. Rayi and 
Ms N. Kontsiwe

Mr M. Toyis Organised Labour COSATU

Ms R. Moodley Non-Governmental 
Organisations

Eastern Cape NGO 
Coalition

Mr D. Claassen Non-Governmental 
Organisations

Eastern Cape NGO 
Coalition

Mr G. Mpumza South African 
Local Government 
Association

SALGA Eastern Cape

Ms N. Meth South African 
Local Government 
Association

SALGA Eastern Cape

Mr P. Ndendela  Organised Business NAFCOC

Mr K. Hustler  Organised Business PERCCI

Mr L. Holbrook 1  Organised Business BKCOB

Mr Z. Tini Independent Independent
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boarD CoMMItteeS
The ECSECC Board has four Committees 
which are:

1. FInanCe anD aDMInIStratIon CoMMIttee;

2. plannInG anD proGraMMeS CoMMIttee;

3. auDIt CoMMIttee; anD 

4. rISk ManaGeMent CoMMIttee.

The operations of each sub-committee 
are governed by a Board approved 
charter. The four committees are 
composed as follows:

1. finance anD aDminiStration committee

Mr Z. Tini (Chairperson)

Dr S. Mabizela

Mr G. Mpumza

Ms R. Moodley

Mr L. Holbrook

2. PlanninG anD ProGrammeS committee

Mr P. Ndendela (Chairperson) Mr P. Ndendela appointed Chairperson

Mr D. Claassen

Mr G. Mpumza Mr G. Mpumza replaced Ms N. Meth

Mr B. Dyasopu Mr G. Dyasopu replaced Mr M. Rayi

Prof T. Mayekiso Prof T. Mayekiso resigned & awaiting 
Higher Education to appoint replacement

3. ecSecc auDit committee memberS

Ms N. Mnconywa (Chairperson) Independent

Mr R.J. Hill Independent

Mr G. Bana Independent

Ms L. Steele Independent

Ms R. Moodley Board Representative

4. ecSecc riSk manaGement committee

Note/Comment

Mr G. Bana (Chairperson) Independent Mr G. Bana (Chairperson)

Ms N. Hlongwane Independent Ms N. Hlongwane

Mr C. Sparg Independent Mr C. Sparg

Mr B. Dyasopu Board Representative Mr G. Dyasopu replaced 
Mr M. Rayi

reMuneratIon oF boarD MeMberS
The Board remuneration is discussed in the Annual Financial Statements 
section. The remuneration of the Board has been determined through 
benchmarking with other entities in the province. Going forward these 
benchmarks will be looked at in line with the Treasury Regulations and in 
consultation with the Executive Authority.
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In the period under review ECSECC had an effective risk management policy 
and strategy and plan in place. A risk assessment for 2014/15 was conducted 
under the facilitation of our Internal Auditors, Rakoma & Associates. The 
main purpose of the risk assessment exercise was to ensure that ECSECC 
management review the current risks, prioritise risks and develop action 
plans for strategic risks that need to be managed in order to achieve the 
vision, mission and core strategic objectives of the organisation. 

In addition to managing strategic risks, ECSECC also managed operational 
risks, and outlined all operational risks for each project in its 2014/15 
Operational Plan. The organisation also continued to strengthen the 
governance and policy environment with respect to risk management 
through policy formulation, strategy development as well through 
creating awareness campaigns about risk in the organisation especially at 
management level.

New and emerging risks were identified and reported on quarterly. The 
primary objective of the Risk Management Committee is to assist the 
Accounting Officer/ Authority discharge his/her accountability for risk 
management by:

Reviewing the effectiveness of the institution’s risk management 
processes; 

Monitoring the institution’s risk management implementation; and

Provide recommendations for improvement. 

The Committee also advises management on the overall system of risk 
management, especially the mitigation of unacceptable levels of risk.

The Audit Committee is an integral component of the risk management 
process and specifically the Committee oversees financial reporting risks, 
fraud risks associated to internal financial controls. The Committee considers 
the overall risk management processes in the Council.

Risk management is embedded in ECSECC activities, considered in the 
Annual Performance Plan and Operational Plan and is included in all project 
plans. Risk management is also discussed at management committee 
meetings and is monitored and reported on a quarterly basis. Risk 
management is also included in all Manager’s performance agreements.

Internal 
auDIt anD 
auDIt 
CoMMItteeS

tHe auDIt FunCtIon at eCSeCC
The internal controls, finances and performance information of ECSECC 
were reviewed and audited by the Auditors. ECSECC’s internal audit 
function is outsourced. The Audit functions have been performed for the 
financial year under review by the following Auditors:

internal auDitorS eXternal auDitorS

Rakoma and Associates Auditor General of SA

Mr S. Mxunyelwa Ms D. Pillay

ECSECC has an Audit Committee that meets four times a year and the 
composition of the committee has been discussed here-in above



48    2014 / 2015 eCSeCC annual report

CoMplIanCe WItH laWS 
anD reGulatIonS

FrauD anD 
CorruptIon 

MInIMISInG ConFlICt oF IntereSt

ECSECC has a compliance policy which 
regulates the state of compliance 
within the entity. Further, there are 
policies and procedures that employees 
abide by which are made available to 
each individual. Provincial Treasury 
makes available to the entity any 
changes to regulations that might have 
an impact on the entity. Lastly, ECSECC 
obtains some level of comfort from 
internal and external audits when it 
comes to compliance.

ECSECC has a Fraud Prevention Policy, a Strategy and a Plan in place. All these 
documents are communicated to employees and individuals are required to 
comply. Employees and other stakeholder can make use of Whistleblowing 
hotline administered by the Office of the Premier. ECSECC receives quarterly 
reports confirming any whistle blowing from the Office of the Premier. These 
are communicated to the Risk Management Board Sub-Committee. Further, 
employees are encourage to make confidential disclosure should they suspect 
any instances of fraud within the organisation.

There has been no reports of fraudulent activities in the current financial year.

ECSECC makes every available effort to minimise the risk of conflict of 
interest in all its business dealings. The entity has policies and procedures 
that assist in managing the risk. Further, employees are required to 
complete a disclosure of interest annually, including supply chain 
practitioners. All Bid Adjudication and Evaluation Committee member also 
disclose their interest on every sitting. Members that are conflicted are 
excused from that specific seating.

CoDe oF 
ConDuCt

HealtH, SaFety 
anD enVIronMent 
ISSueS 
The organisation strives towards keeping a welcoming, safe and healthy 
working environment and has not experienced any health challenges or 
injury on duty in the period under review. 

ECSECC has a Code of Conduct that 
is signed by the employees on an 
annual basis. Each employee signs 
acknowledgement at the beginning of 
each financial year. We also conduct 
an information session once a year. 
Where there is a breach of the Code of 
Conduct the organisation deals with it 
within the prescripts of its disciplinary 
procedures and applicable legislation.
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We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended  
31 March 2015.

auDIt CoMMIttee MeMberS anD attenDanCe
The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should 
meet a minimum of 4 times per annum as per its approved terms of 
reference. During the current year 5 meetings were held.

name of member number of meetinGS attenDeD

Ms N Mnconywa (Chairperson) 5

Ms R Moodley 5

Mr G Bana 5

Ms L Steele 5

Mr RJ Hill 5

auDIt CoMMIttee reSponSIbIlIty
The Audit Committee (hereinafter referred to as the Committee) is a 
sub-committee of the Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council 
(hereinafter referred to as the Council), The Committee reports that it has 
complied with its responsibilities arising from section 77 of the PFMA 
and Treasury Regulation 3.1 and 27. The Committee also reports that it 
has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee 
charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has 
discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

tHe eFFeCtIVeneSS oF Internal Control 
The system of internal control applied by the entity over financial risk and 
risk management is effective, efficient and transparent.

In line with the PFMA; Companies Act 2008 and the guidelines from King 
III Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides 
the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal 
controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk 
management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and 
suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors it was noted that no 
further matters were reported that indicate material deficiencies in the 
system of internal control or deviations therefrom.

Accordingly, we can report that there was continuous improvement in the 
system of internal control for the period under review. 
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eValuatIon oF FInanCIal StateMentS
The Audit Committee has: 

Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be 
included in the annual report; 

Noted that there were no changes in accounting policies and practices; 

Reviewed the entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and

Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s (AGSA) management 
report and management’s response thereto. 

Internal auDIt
Rakoma and Associates Inc. were appointed as Internal Auditors of 
ECSECC in 2012/2013 financial period. The Audit Committee is satisfied that 
the internal audit function operated effectively and that it has addressed the 
risks pertinent to the entity in its audits. The Audit Committee appreciates 
the good working relations between ECSECC and Rakoma.

auDItor-General’S report
The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General 
on the annual financial statements and is of the opinion that the audited 
annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report 
of the Auditor-General.

The Committee congratulates ECSECC for maintaining the clean audit 
opinion for three consecutive years.

n MnConyWa

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

25 August 2015
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oVerVIeW oF Hr MatterS eCSeCC
ECSECC implemented a number of human resource development 
programmes in the period under review. Staff underwent a number of 
training programmes with a view to honing their skills and capabilities. 

A number of submissions to the Department of Labour were made in 
time. For example the submission according to the Compensation for 
Occupational Injuries and diseases Act and Employment Equity Act. 

This financial year has also seen a number of Human Resources Policies 
being amended in order to align with labour legislation

An amended Performance Management and Development System was 
implemented during the financial year under review. Following are the other 
HR related matters and achievements.

Set prIorItIeS For 2014 - 2015 FInanCIal year 
anD tHe IMpaCt oF tHeSe prIorItIeS 
Three main priorities for the financial year were to assess the alignment of 
ECSECC human resources policies with the amendments in labour legislation, 
meeting employment equity targets and assessing staff satisfaction. 

After the signing off of amendments in labour legislation like the Labour 
Relations Amendments Bill 2012, the organisation reviewed all HR 
policies and systems that are affected by the amendments. As a result 
amendments were made to the Temporary Employee Policy and Studies 
Policy. As a result ECSECC policies and systems are now reflecting the 
amendments in legislation. 

The second main priority was on meeting the Employment Equity Targets 
and the organisation’s plan. The organisation has gone beyond what was 
targeted for 2014 - 2015 financial year. It has achieved 2016 - 2017 targets 
in top management level. There is now equal representation of men and 
women in the top management level.

The third main priority was to assess the level of staff satisfaction and use 
this to gauge gaps in the existing human resources systems and practices. 
The staff survey was conducted and a number of recommendations were 
made by the staff members on how working conditions and systems can 
be made to accommodate their needs. As a result of the findings of this 
survey, a number of policies were reviewed (i.e. study assistance and 
training assistance policy).
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WorkForCe plannInG 
FraMeWork anD key 
StrateGIeS to attraCt 
anD reCruIt a SkIlleD 
anD Capable labour 
WorkForCe
ECSECC identifies the key capabilities 
required in order to achieve the 
organisation’s five year strategic plan and 
a service excellence model. Based on 
the identified priorities, and the identified 
capabilities, the organisational design 
implications are then identified. The 
programmes that are needed in order to 
achieve the objectives are identified and 
together they form up an organisation 
structure. This organisation structure is 
reviewed on an annual basis, as part of 
the annual planning process. It is then 
approved by the Board of Directors on 
an annual basis, at the beginning of  
the financial year. ECSECC management 
fills the positions based on the 
approved organogram.

eMployee perForManCe 
ManaGeMent 
FraMeWork
ECSECC uses a Performance 
Management and Development System 
to manage performance of employees. 
The performance management 
system that is used not only seeks to 
assess and enhance performance of 
employees but it also seeks to create 
motivated employees who are resilient, 
take initiative are innovative and are 
effective self-leaders. The performance 
management system is structured 
such that it encourages employees to 
practise the organisational values that 
are reflected in the organisation’s five 
year strategic plan.

Performance reviews are done twice a 
year. The first review covers the first six 
months and the second review covers 
the whole financial year. Managers 
are encouraged to give feedback on 
employee performance throughout the 
financial year.

eMployee WellneSS 
proGraMMe
ECSECC has a wellness plan that 
identifies the activities conducted 
by the organisation to promote 
wellness of employees. The wellness 
programme focuses on the person as 
a whole (physical, psychological and 
financial health). 

Each year the organisation conducts 
a wellness day and a number of 
information sessions are held by the 
various service providers and the 
Department of Health. Focus areas of 
the information sessions are on HIV/
AIDS, diabetics, health (including oral 
health) and financial literacy.

Celebrations are held on special days, 
like Africa Day, with the main aim of 
giving information on issues of identity, 
being an African, diversity and various 
cultures, sexual reproductive health, etc.

polICy DeVelopMent 
The policies of ECSECC are approved 
by the Board of Directors. This final 
approval is preceded by consultations 
with management and employees of 
the organisation. There were no new 
human resources related policies 
developed during the period under 
review however there were reviews and 
adjustments to existing policies. 
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HIGHlIGHt oF 
aCHIeVeMentS
ECSECC achieved its 2016 2017 
Employment Equity Target two years 
early because in the top management 
there is now equal representation of 
men and women. 

ECSECC has added new benefits like 
education cover into the existing group 
life cover. 

The staff morale survey findings 
indicate that employees of ECSECC 
identify with the vision and mission of 
ECSECC and they are satisfied with the 
level of challenge posed by their jobs. 
The Human Resources Strategy will 
be adjusted to ensure that the main 
contributions of the employees are 
incorporated. The organisation has a 
low staff turnover and this augurs well 
for the retention of key capabilities and 
institutional memory. 

CHallenGeS FaCeD by 
eCSeCC
Budget cuts have resulted in the 
freezing of some positions. This 
may affect the ability of the entity 
to deliver because the amount of 
projects that the entity is expected to 
deliver on has not been reduced.

Reduced budget also implies that 
the funds allocated for the capacity 
building of staff members is reduced. 
This may affect delivery in the long run 
because employees are supposed to 
be continuously capacitated in order to 
ensure effective and quality delivery. 

Future HuMan 
reSourCeS planS anD 
GoalS
ECSECC will be placing a lot of 
emphasis on the communication of 
organisational values and the promotion 
of an organisational culture that is 
linked to the values. This will be done 
through information sessions where 
people discuss these values and their 
implication on expected behaviour.

There is also going to be emphasis on 
skills retention. This will going to be 
approached through the use of career 
path and succession planning for each 
position, throughout the organisation.

The organisation’s human resources 
strategy will also be reviewed.

eQual repreSentatIon

TOP MANAGEMENT
gender equity

10%
loWer SkIlleD 
(GraDe a - b)

17%  
SkIlleD (GraDe C)

45%  
HIGHly SkIlleD (GraDe D & S)

24%  
HIGHly SkIlleD WItH 

SuperVISIon (GraDe D3) 4% CHIeF eXeCutIVe 
oFFICer (GraDe e)

perSonnel CoStS by 

Salary banDS

2014/15
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HuMan reSourCe 
oVerSIGHt StatIStICS
Table 2.1.1 Personnel costs by programme, 2014/15

ProGramme total 
eXPenDiture

PerSonnel 
eXPenDiture

traininG 
eXPenDiture

other relateD 
coStS

PerSonnel coSt 
aS a Percent 

of total 
eXPenDiture

aVeraGe 
PerSonnel coSt 

Per emPloyee

(R’000) (R’000) (R’000) (R’000) (R’000)

Finance, Corporate Affairs, Strategic, 
Operations and Knowledge Management

14 918 14 201 271 446 95% 50%

Economic Governance 3 003 2 893 20 91 96% 10%

Infrastructure Governance 2 699 2 588 30 81 96% 9%

Strategic Governance Support 1 713 1 651 10 52 96% 6%

Human Resources Development 2 506 2 410 20 76 96% 8%

HIV/AIDS 5 256 4 957 143 156 94% 17%

Total 30 095 28 700 494 901 95% 100%

Table 2.1.2  Personnel costs by salary bands, 2014/15

Salary banDS PerSonnel 
eXPenDiture 

% of total 
PerSonnel coSt

aVeraGe 
PerSonnel coSt 

Per emPloyee
(R’000) (R’000)

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 2 949 10% 128

Skilled (Grade C) 4 808 17% 369

Highly skilled (Grade D & S) 12 793 45% 710

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 6 753 24% 844

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 1 397 4% 1 397

Total 28 700 100% 455

eXpenDIture
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Table 2.1.3  Salaries and Overtime and Medical Assistance 2014/15

ProGramme SalarieS oVertime
amount SalarieS aS a % of 

PerSonnel coSt
amount oVertime  

aS a % of  
PerSonnel coSt

(R’000) (R’000)

Finance, Corporate Affairs, Strategy, Operations & Knowledge Management 14 201 95% 4 0.02%

Economic Governance 2 893 96% 0 0

Infrastructure Governance 2 588 96% 0 0

Strategic Governance Support 1 651 96% 0 0

Human Resources Development 2 410 96% 0 0

HIV/AIDS 4 957 94% 0 0

Total 28 700 95% 4 0.02%

Table 2.1.4  Salaries, Overtime and Medical Assistance by salary bands, 2014/15

Salary banDS SalarieS oVertime
amount SalarieS aS a  

% of PerSonnel  
coSt

amount oVertime  
aS a % of  

PerSonnel coSt

(R’000) (R’000)

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 2 949 10% 4 0.02%

Skilled (Grade C) 4 808 17% 0 0%

Highly skilled (Grade D & S) 12 793 44% 0 0%

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 6 752 24% 0 0%

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 1 398 5% 0 0%

Total 28 700 100% 45 0.2%

eMployMent anD VaCanCIeS
Table 2.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2015

ProGramme number of  
PoStS

number of  
PoStS filleD

Vacancy rate number of 
PoStS filleD 
aDDitional 

to the 
eStabliShment

Administration and Finance 16 15 94% 0

Economic Governance 5 4 80% 0

Strategic Governance and Infrastructure Support Programme 5 5 100% 0

Strategy, Operations and Knowledge Management 9 9 100% 0

Eastern Cape Aids Council 8 8 100% 0

Human Resources Development 4 4 100% 0

Total 47 45 96%

Administration and Finance 16 15 94% 0
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Table 2.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary bands, by 31 March 2015

Salary banD number of  
PoStS

number of  
PoStS filleD

Vacancy rate number of 
PoStS filleD 
aDDitional 

to the 
eStabliShment

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 12 12 100% None

Skilled (Grade C) 12 12 100% None

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 14 13 93% 02

Highly skilled supervision (Grade D3) 8 7 88% None

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 1 1 100% None

Total 47 45 96% 02

Table 2.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, by 31 March 2015

critical occuPationS number of  
PoStS

number of  
PoStS filleD

Vacancy rate number of 
PoStS filleD 
aDDitional 

to the 
eStabliShment

Chief Executive Officer 1 1 100% None

Chief Financial Officer 1 1 100% None

Corporate Affairs Manager 1 1 100% None

Chief Operations Manager 1 1 100% None

Total 4 4 100% None

job eValuatIon

Table 2.3.1 Job Evaluation, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Salary banDS number of  
PoStS

number of jobS 
eValuateD

% of PoStS 
eValuateD by 

Salary banDS

PoStS uPGraDeD PoStS DownGraDeD
number % of PoStS 

eValuateD
number % of PoStS 

eValuateD

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 12 2 17% 2 18% 0 0%

Skilled (Grade C) 12 4 33% 0 30% 0 0%

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 13 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Highly skilled supervision (Grade D3) 7 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 1 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Total 45 6 13% 0 13% 0 0%
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Table 2.3.2 Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded,  
1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

beneficiarieS african aSian coloureD white total

Female 5 0 0 0 5

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 5

Employees with a disability 0

Table 2.3.3 Employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

occuPation number of 
emPloyeeS

job eValuation 
leVel (accorDinG 
to PeterSon job 
GraDinG SyStem

remuneration 
leVel

reaSon for DeViation

Programme Manager Strategic Governance and 
Infrastructure Support Programme

1 D3 Higher Approved by the Board of 
Directors in order to counter 
the salary offer from another 
organisation 

Resource Centre Coordinator 1 C2 Higher Salaries were already given 
before Peterson Job Grading 
system was established

Receptionist 1 B1 Higher Salaries were already given 
before Peterson Job Grading 
system was established

Total Number of Employees whose salaries exceeded 
the level determined by job evaluation in 2013/14

3

Percentage of total employment 6%

Table 2.3.4 Profile of employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation,  
1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 

beneficiarieS african aSian coloureD white total

Female 2 0 0 0 2

Male 1 0 0 0 1

Total 3 0 0 0 3

Employees with a disability 0

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded 
the grades determined by job evaluation in 2014/15

3
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eMployMent CHanGeS

Table 2.4.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Salary banD number of 
emPloyeeS Per 

banD aS on 1 
aPril 2014

aPPointmentS 
anD tranSferS 

into the 
DePartment

terminationS 
anD tranSferS 

out of the 
DePartment

turnoVer rate

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 11 2 1 25%

Skilled (Grade C) 9 2 0 18%

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 15 2 1 25%

Highly skilled supervision (Grade D3) 7 0 0 0%

Total 42 6 2 20%

Table 2.4.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Salary banD number of 
emPloyeeS Per 
occuPation aS 
on 1 aPril 2014

aPPointmentS 
anD tranSferS 

into the 
DePartment

terminationS 
anD tranSferS 

out of the 
DePartment

turnoVer rate

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 15 2 1 13%

Highly skilled supervision (Grade D3) 7 0 0 0%

Executive Director (Grade E) 1 0 0 0%

Total 23 2 1 9%

Table 2.4.3 Reasons why staff are leaving the entity

termination tyPe number % of total

Death 0 0%

Resignation 2 2%

Expiry of contract 0 0%

Dismissal - operational changes 0 0%

Dismissal - misconduct 0 0%

Dismissal - inefficiency 0 0%

Discharged due to ill-health 0 0%

Retirement 0 0%

Transfers to other Public Service Departments 0 0%

Other 0 0%

Total 2 4%

Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 1
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Table 2.4.4 Promotions by critical occupation

Salary banD emPloyeeS aS at 
1 aPril 2014

PromotionS to 
another Salary 

leVel

Salary leVel 
PromotionS aS a 

% of emPloyeeS 
by occuPation

ProGreSSionS to 
another notch 

within a Salary 
leVel

notch 
ProGreSSionS 

aS a % of 
emPloyeeS by 

occuPation

Executive Secretary 1 1 100% 0 0%

Supply Chain Manager 1 0 0% 0 0%

Development Economist 1 0 0% 1 100%

General Assistants 2 2 100% 2 100%

Knowledge Management Assistant 1 1 100% 1 100%

Statistical Economist 1 1 100% 1 100%

Administration Assistant 1 1 100% 1 100%

Human Resources Officer 1 1 100% 1 100%

Table 2.4.5 Promotions by salary band

Salary banD emPloyeeS  
1 aPril 2014

PromotionS to 
another Salary 

leVel

Salary banDS 
PromotionS aS a 

% of emPloyeeS 
by Salary leVel

ProGreSSionS to 
another notch 

within a Salary 
leVel

notch 
ProGreSSionS 

aS a % of 
emPloyeeS by 
Salary banD

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 11 5 45% 5 45%

Skilled (Grade C) 9 2 22% 2 22%

Highly skilled (Grade D & S) 15 1 7% 1 7%

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 7 0 0% 0 0%

Executive Director (Grade E) 1 0 0% 0 0%

Total 43 8 0% 8 19%

eMployMent eQuIty

Table 2.5.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational 
categories as on 31 March 2015 
occuPational cateGorieS (SaSco) male female total

african coloureD inDian white african coloureD inDian white

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Senior Managers 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 8

Project Managers 1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4

Program staff 2 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 8

Specialists 3 1 0 1 2 1 0 0 8

Clerks 1 0 0 0 11 0 1 0 13

General Assistants 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Total 11 1 0 2 28 1 1 0 44

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
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Table 2.5.2 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 

occuPational banDS male female total
african coloureD inDian white african coloureD inDian white

Executive Director 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Programme staff: skilled technical and 
academically qualified but no management 
responsibility

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1

General Assistants: Unskilled and defined 
decision making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.5.3 Promotions for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

occuPational banDS male female total
african coloureD inDian white african coloureD inDian white

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Programme staff: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified but no management 
responsibility

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3

General Assistants: Unskilled and defined 
decision making

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Interns 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 7

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 2.5.4 Terminations for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

occuPational banDS male female total
african coloureD inDian white african coloureD inDian white

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Programme staff: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified but no management 
responsibility

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

General Assistants: Unskilled and defined 
decision making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.5.5 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

occuPational banDS male female total
african coloureD inDian white african coloureD inDian white

Disciplinary action 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.5.6 Terminations for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

occuPational banDS male female total
african coloureD inDian white african coloureD inDian white

Chief Executive Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 4

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Programme staff: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified but no management 
responsibility

1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 6

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

0 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 6

General Assistants: Unskilled and defined 
decision making

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 8 1 0 0 14 1 0 0 24

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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perForManCe reWarDS

Table 2.6.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender, and disability, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

beneficiary Profile coSt

occuPational cateGorieS (SaSco) number of 
beneficiarieS

total number  
of emPloyeeS in 

GrouP

% of total  
within GrouP

coSt (r’000) aVeraGe coSt  
Per emPloyee

African: 21

Male 4 19% 126 32

Female 17 80% 397 25

Asian: 2

Male 1 50% 31 31

Female 1 50% 27 27

Foreigner: 3

Male 2 66% 65 32

Female 1 33% 36 36

Coloured: 1

Male 1 100% 30 30

Female 0 0% 0 0

White:

Male 5 5 100% 188 37

Female 0 0% 0 0

Employees with a disability: 0 0 0% 0 0

Total 32 32 100% 770 19

Table 2.6.2 Performance Rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service,  
1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

beneficiary Profile coSt

Salary banDS number of  
beneficiarieS

total number  
of emPloyeeS in 

GrouP

% of total  
within Salary 

banDS

total coSt  
(r’000)

aVeraGe coSt Per 
emPloyee

total coSt aS a  
% of the total  

PerSonnel 
eXPenDiture

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 9 14 64% 177 13 0.04%

Skilled (Grade C) 8 8 87% 163 20 0.06%

Highly skilled (Grade D1, & S ) 9 9 88% 555 62 1.9%

Total 26 31 895 29 3.1%
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Table 2.6.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupations, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

beneficiary Profile coSt

critical occuPationS number of  
beneficiarieS

number of 
emPloyeeS

% of total within 
occuPation

total coSt  
(r’000)

aVeraGe coSt  
Per emPloyee

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 8 8 87% 315 39

Executive Director (Grade E) 1 1 100% 73 73

Total 9 9 388 43

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 8 8 87% 315 39

ForeIGn WorkerS

Table 2.7.1 Foreign Workers, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015, by salary band

Salary banDS 1 aPril 2014 31 march 2015 chanGe
number % of total number % of total number % of total

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Skilled (Grade C) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 1 9% 1 9% 0 0%

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 1 14% 1 14% 0 0%

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%

Total 2 2 0

Table 2.7.2 Foreign Worker, 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015, by major occupation

major occuPation 1 aPril 2014 31 march 2015 chanGe
number % of total number % of total number % of total

Senior Management 1 14% 1 14% 0 0%

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

1 9% 1 9% 0 0%

Total 2 2 0
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leaVe utIlISatIon For tHe perIoD 1 january 2014 - 31 DeCeMber 2015

Table 2.8.1 Sick leave, 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2015

Salary banD total DayS % DayS with 
meDical 

certification

number of 
emPloyeeS uSinG 

Sick leaVe

% of total 
emPloyeeS uSinG 

Sick leaVe

aVeraGe DayS 
Per emPloyee

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 138 60% 25 53% 2.38

Skilled (Grade C) 27 19% 11 64% 3

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 23 13% 6 40% 2

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 11 28% 3 43% 2

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 0 0% 0 0% 0

Total 199 45 2.3

Table 2.8.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2015 

Salary banD total DayS 
taken

% DayS with 
meDical 

certification

number of 
emPloyeeS uSinG 
DiSability leaVe

% of total 
emPloyeeS uSinG 
DiSability leaVe

aVeraGe DayS 
Per emPloyee

eStimateD coSt 
(r’000)

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Grade C) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.8.3 Annual Leave, 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2015 

Salary banDS total DayS 
taken

aVeraGe Per 
emPloyee

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 267 9

Skilled (Grade C) 141 8

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 322 9.5

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 164 3.3

Chief Executive Officer (Grade E) 27.5 2.2

Total 921
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Table 2.8.4 Capped leave, 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2015 - Not Applicable

Salary banDS total DayS of 
caPPeD leaVe 

taken

aVeraGe number 
of DayS taken 
Per emPloyee

aVeraGe caPPeD 
leaVe Per 

emPloyee aS at 
31 December 2014

Lower skilled (Grade A - B) 0 0 0

Skilled (Grade C) 0 0 0

Highly skilled (Grade D1; D2 & S) 0 0 0

Highly skilled with supervision (Grade D3) 0 0 0

Executive Director (Grade E) 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0

Table 2.8.5 Leave pay-outs for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

reaSon total amount 
(r’000)

number of 
emPloyeeS

aVeraGe 
Payment Per 

emPloyee

Leave pay-out for 2014/15 due to non-utilisation of leave for the previous cycle 0 0 R0

Current leave pay-out on termination of service for 2014/15 R138 2 R69

Total 2 R69

HIV anD aIDS anD HealtH proMotIon proGraMMeS

Table 2.9.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Categories of employees identified to be at high risk of contracting  
HIV and related diseases (if any)

Key steps taken to reduce the risk

Programme staff members who sleep away from home as a result  
of ECSECC business

Condoms are kept in public areas at ECSECC so that employees can pick 
them up at any time needed.
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Table 2.9.2 Details of Health Promotion and Aids Programmes 

QueStion yeS no DetailS, if yeS

Has the entity designated a member of the SMS to 
implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 
1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, provide 
her/his name and position.

n/a n/a ECSECC is not registered according to PSA and is therefore 
not bound by PSR but a senior manager responsible for HIV/
AIDS and Health Promotion is Ms Nomsa Mbovani (Corporate 
Affairs Manager).

Does the entity have a dedicated unit or has it designated 
specific staff members to promote the health and well-
being of your employees? If so, indicate the number of 
employees who are involved in this task and the annual 
budget that is available for this purpose.

Yes Corporate Affairs Unit is a designated Unit to promote health 
and well being issues of employees. This unit consists of 
Human Resources Officer, Administration Assistant and 
Corporate Affairs Manager have this responsibility.

Has the entity introduced an Employee Assistance or 
Health Promotion Programme for your employees? If so, 
indicate the key elements/services of this Programme.

Yes It is called a wellness programme. The programme aims to 
take care of the physical, social, family and psychological 
aspects of each employee.

Has the established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in 
Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 
2001? If so, please provide the names of the members of the 
committee and the stakeholder(s) that they represent.

Yes ECSECC is not registered according to PSA and is therefore 
not bound by PSR. ECSECC has wellness committee 
consisting of Corporate Affairs Manager, HIV/AIDS researcher, 
human rights and Impact Mitigation Manager and Union 
Representative (NEHAWU).

Has the entity reviewed its employment policies and 
practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate 
against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, 
list the employment policies/practices so reviewed.

Yes The policies are reviewed annually to ensure that they keep 
up with the changes in legislation and do not discriminate 
against people ( for example, human resources policies and 
temporary employee policies).

labour relatIonS

The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions with the entity:

Table 2.10.1 Collective agreements, 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Subject matter Date

Annual Salary Increase for 2014 - 2015 financial year 25 January 2014
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Table 2.10.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

outcomeS of DiSciPlinary hearinG number % of total

Correctional counselling 0 0%

Verbal warning 0 0%

Written warning 1 100%

Final written warning 0 0%

Suspended without pay 0 0%

Fine 0 0%

Demotion 0 0%

Dismissal 0 0%

Not guilty 0 0%

Case withdrawal 0 0%

Total 1 100%

The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions with the entity 

Table 2.10.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

tyPe of miSconDuct number % of total

N/A N/A N/A

Total N/A N/A

Table 2.10.4 Grievance lodged for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

tyPe of miSconDuct number % of total

Number of grievances not resolved 0 0%

Total number of grievances lodged 0 0%

Total 0 0%

Table 2.10.5 Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

number of DiSPuteS uPhelD number % of total

Number of disputes dismissed 0 0%

Total number of disputes lodged 0 0%

Total 0 0%

Table 2.10.6 Strike actions for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 (no strike action experienced)

Total number of person working days lost 0

Total cost (R’000) of working days lost 0

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0
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Table 2.10.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015
(no employees were suspended)

Number of people suspended 0

Number of people whose suspension exceed 30 days 0

Average number of days suspended 0

Cost (R’000) of suspensions 0

SkIllS DeVelopMent 

Table 2.11.1 Skills development for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

GenDer number of 
emPloyeeS

 aS at 1 aPril 
2014

traininG neeDS iDentifieD at Start of rePortinG PerioD
learnerShiPS SkillS  

ProGrammeS & 
other Short  

courSe 

other formS of 
traininG

total

Chief Executive Officer Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 1 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Female 3 0 0 2 2

Male 4 0 0 3 3

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

Female 2 0 2 0 2

Male 7 0 0 3 3

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

Female 5 0 3 0 3

Male 1 0 0 1 1`

Programme staff: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified but no management 
responsibility

Female 6 0 0 5 5

Male 3 0 0 3 3

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

Female 9 0 7 0 7

Male 0 0 0 0 0

General Assistants: Unskilled and defined 
decision making

Female 3- 0 0 2 3

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Interns Female 1 0 0 2 2

Male 0 0 0 1 1

Total Female 30 0 11 14 25

Male 16 0 9 9 18

Employees with disabilities Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 1 0 0 0 0
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Table 2.11.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

GenDer number of 
emPloyeeS

 aS at  
1 aPril 2014

traininG neeDS iDentifieD at Start of rePortinG PerioD

Learnerships

Chief Executive Officer Female 0 Chief Executive Officer Female 0

Male 0 Male 1

Senior Management Female 0 Senior Management Female 3

Male 0 Male 4

Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

Female 0 Specialists: Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists 

Female 2

Male 0 Male 7

Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

Female 0 Project Managers: Skilled technical and 
academically qualified workers, junior 
management, 

Female 5

Male 0 Male 1

Programme staff: Skilled technical 
and academically qualified but no 
management responsibility

Female 0 Programme staff: skilled technical 
and academically qualified but no 
management responsibility

Female 6

Male 0 Male 3

Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

Female 0 Clerks: Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making

Female 9

Male 0 Male 0

General Assistants: Unskilled and 
defined decision making

Female 0 General Assistants: Unskilled and 
defined decision making

Female 3-

Male 0 Male 0

Interns Female 0 Interns Female 1

Male 0 Male 0

Total Female 0 Total Female 30

Male 0 Male 16

Employees with disabilities Female 0 Employees with disabilities Female 0

Male 0 Male 1

Injury on Duty 

Table 2.12.1 Injury on duty, 01 April 2014 to 31 March 2015
(the following tables provide basic information on injury on duty)

nature of injury on Duty number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 0 0%

Temporal total disablement 0 0%

Permanent disablement 0 0%

Fatal 0 0%

Total 0 0%
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report oF tHe auDItor-
General to tHe eaStern  
Cape proVInCIal leGISlature 
on tHe eaStern Cape  
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 IntroDuCtIon
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Eastern Cape Socio 

Economic Consultative Council set out on pages 74 to 106, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the 
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, 
and cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget 
information with actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as 
the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

 

 aCCountInG autHorIty'S reSponSIbIlIty For tHe 
FInanCIal StateMentS

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the 
South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No: 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and 
the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies 
Act), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

 

 auDItor-General'S reSponSIbIlIty
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that 
I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

 

 opInIon
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 

respects, the financial position of the Eastern Cape Socio Economic 
Consultative Council as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards 
of GRAP, the requirements of the PFMA and the Companies Act.



2014 / 2015 eCSeCC annual report    73

 aDDItIonal Matter
7. I draw attention to the matter below. 

My opinion is not modified in respect 
of this matter.

 

 otHer reportS reQuIreD by 
tHe CoMpanIeS aCt

8. As part of my audit of the financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 
2015, I have read the Directors' Report 
and the Audit Committee's Report for 
the purpose of identifying whether 
there are material inconsistencies 
between these reports and the audited 
financial statements. These reports 
are the responsibility of the respective 
preparers. Based on reading these 
reports I have not identified material 
inconsistencies between the reports 
and the audited financial statements in 
respect of which I have expressed an 
unqualified opinion. I have not audited 
the reports and accordingly I do not 
express an opinion on them.

 

 report on otHer leGal anD 
reGulatory reQuIreMentS

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 
of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 
2004) and the general notice issued in 
terms thereof, I have a responsibility 
to report findings on the reported 
performance information against 
predetermined objectives for selected 
programmes presented in the annual 
performance report, non-compliance 
with legislation and internal control. The 
objective of my tests was to identify 
reportable findings as described under 
each subheading but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance on 
these matters. Accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion or conclusion on 
these matters.

 

 preDeterMIneD objeCtIVeS
10. I performed procedures to obtain 

evidence about the usefulness and 
reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following selected 

programmes presented in the annual 
performance report of the entity for 
the year ended 31 March 2015:

•	 Programme	1:	Operations,	Finance,	
Corporate Services and Knowledge 
(on pages 20 to 22)

•	 Programme	2:	Economic	Governance	
(on pages 23 to 25)

•	 Programme	3:	Infrastructure	
Governance (on pages 26 to 28)

•	 Programme	5:	Human	Resources	
Development (on pages 33 to 35)

•	 Programme	6:	HIV/AIDS	(on	pages	 
36 to 40)

11. I evaluated the reported performance 
information against the overall criteria 
of usefulness and reliability.

12. I evaluated the usefulness of the 
reported performance information 
to determine whether it was 
presented in accordance with the 
National Treasury's annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported 
performance was consistent with 
the planned programmes. I further 
performed tests to determine 
whether indicators and targets  
were well defined, verifiable, 
specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the 
National Treasury's Framework for 
managing programme performance 
information (FMPPI).

13. I assessed the reliability of the 
reported performance information 
to determine whether it was valid , 
accurate and complete.

14. I did not identify any material 
findings on the usefulness 
and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the 
following programmes:

•	 Programme	1:	Operations,	Finance,	
Corporate Services and Knowledge

•	 Programme	2:	Economic	Governance
•	 Programme	3:	Infrastructure	

Governance
•	 Programme	5:	Human	Resources	

Development
•	 Programme	6:	HIV/AIDS	

 

 aDDItIonal MatterS
15. Although I identified no material 

findings on the usefulness and 
reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected 
programmes, I draw attention to the 
following matters:

 aCHIeVeMent oF planneD 
tarGetS

16. Refer to the annual performance report 
on pages 19 to 40 for information on 
the achievement of the planned targets 
for the year. 

 

 unauDIteD SuppleMentary 
InForMatIon

17. The supplementary information set out 
on pages 41 to 70 does not form part 
of the annual performance report and 
is presented as additional information. 
I have not audited this information and, 
accordingly, I do not report thereon.

 

 CoMplIanCe WItH 
leGISlatIon

18. I performed procedures to obtain 
evidence that the entity had complied 
with applicable legislation regarding 
financial matters, financial management 
and other related matters. I did not 
identify any instances of material non-
compliance with specific matters in key 
legislation, as set out in the general 
notice issued in terms of the PM.

 

 Internal Control
19. I considered internal control 

relevant to my audit of the financial 
statements, performance report and 
compliance with legislation. I did not 
identify any significant deficiencies in 
internal control.

auDItor General

East London

29 July 2015
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Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014 

aSSetS

Current Assets
Receivables from exchange transactions 3 66 510 77 271
Prepayments 4 1 042 606 798 581
Cash and cash equivalents 5 4 959 510 3 422 162

6 068 626 4 298 014
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 1 362 835 1 432 203
Intangible assets 7 227 843 29 022
Deposit 8 330 659 -

1 921 337 1 461 225
Total Assets 7 989 963 5 759 239

liabilitieS

Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 9 74 444 97 841
Operating lease liability 10 - 119 408
Payables from exchange transactions 11 3 109 808 2 654 750
Payables from non-exchange transactions 12 3 188 443 2 062 370
Provisions 13 1 285 670 1 103 510

7 658 365 6 037 879
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 9 212 272 -
Operating lease liability 10 121 180 -

333 452 -
Total Liabilities 7 991 817 6 037 879
Net Assets (1 854) (278 640)
Accumulated surplus (1 854) (278 640)

StateMent oF 

FInanCIal poSItIon
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
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StateMent oF 

FInanCIal perForManCe
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Figures in Rand  Note(s) 2015 2014 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 14 47 781 927 45 291 555
Other income 15 9 295 25 445
Operating expenses (47 906 359) (45 163 536)

Operating (deficit) surplus 16 (115 137) 153 464
Investment revenue 17 402 113 218 823
Finance costs 18 (10 190) (11 343)
Surplus for the year 276 786 360 944
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StateMent oF 

CHanGeS In net aSSetS
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Figures in Rand (thousand) accumulateD
SurPluS

total net
aSSetS

balance at 01 aPril 2013 (639 584) (639 584)

Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 360 944 360 944
Total changes 360 944 360 944

balance at 01 aPril 2014 (278 640) (278 640)

Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 276 786 276 786
Total changes 276 786 276 786

Balance at 31 March 2015 (1 854) (1 854)
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CaSH FloW 
StateMent 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Figures in Rand (thousand) Note(s) 2015 2014
 

caSh flowS from oPeratinG actiVitieS

Receipts
Grants 48 908 000 45 431 600
Interest income 402 113 218 823

49 310 113 45 650 423
Payments
Employee costs (30 140 004) (29 668 921)
Suppliers (16 679 225) (16 106 488)
Finance costs (10 190) (11 343)

(46 829 419) (45 786 752)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 2 480 694 (136 329)

caSh flowS from inVeStinG actiVitieS

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (606 204) (559 396)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6 47 918 81 695
Purchase of other intangible assets 7 (243 276) -
Payment of deposits 8 (330 659) -
Net cash flows from investing activities (1 132 221) (477 701)

caSh flowS from financinG actiVitieS

Finance lease obligation 188 875 (115 230)

net increaSe/(DecreaSe) in caSh anD caSh eQuiValentS 1 537 348 (729 260)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3 422 162 4 151 422
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 4 959 510 3 422 162



78    2014 / 2015 eCSeCC annual report

StateMent oF 

CoMparISon oF buDGet  
anD aCtual aMountS

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Figures in Rand 

Budget on Cash Basis

aPProVeD
buDGet

aDjuStmentS final buDGet actual amountS 
on comParable 

baSiS

Difference 
between final 

buDGet anD 
actual

reVenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Interest received 160 000 - 160 000 402 113 242 113 1
Insurance proceeds - - - 44 437 44 437 2
Total revenue from exchange 
transactions

160 000 - 160 000 446 550 286 550

Revenue from exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants 44 818 000 4 090 000 48 908 000 48 908 000 -
Total revenue 44 978 000 4 090 000 49 068 000 49 354 550 286 550

eXPenDiture

Personnel (31 601 000) - (31 601 000) (30 462 304) 1 138 696 3
Finance costs (49 000) - (49 000) (10 190) 38 810 4
General Expenses (12 828 000) (4 090 000) (16 918 000) (17 436 049) (518 049) 5
Capital Expenditure (500 000) - (500 000) (606 204) (106 204) 6
Total expenditure (44 978 000) (4 090 000) (49 068 000) (48 514 747) (106 204)
Surplus before taxation - - - 839 803 839 803
Actual Amount on Comparable Basis 
as Presented in the Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement

- - - 839 803 839 803

reconciliation

Basis difference

Grant movements and insurance proceeds (1 161 144)
Cost of employees 322 300
General expenses 275 827
Actual Amount in the Statement of  
Financial Performance

276 786
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StateMent oF 

CoMparISon oF buDGet  
anD aCtual aMountS

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Figures in Rand 

Budget on Cash Basis

aPProVeD
buDGet

aDjuStmentS final buDGet actual amountS 
on comParable 

baSiS

Difference 
between final 

buDGet anD 
actual

1. The higher actual interest amount than the budgeted amount is due to an increase in grant revenue received at mid-year

2. Insurance proceeds relates to monies received from ECSECC insures for three laptops lost/stolen during the current period. This amount was not 
budgeted for due to its nature.

3. Underspending in personnel expenditure is due to Economic Governance programme manager position being frozen due to austerity measures.

4. Underspending in finance costs is due to less actual costs than were anticipated.

5. Overspending in general expenses has been funded out of entity internally generated revenue for service level agreement work done for other 
government institutions.

6. Overspending in capital expenditure has been funded out of entity internally generated revenue i.e. Interest revenue.
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aCCountInG polICIeS
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

1. PreSentation of annual financial StatementS

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 
issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

The Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council (ECSECC) is an entity domiciled in South Africa. The address of ECSECC's registered 
office is 12 Gloucester Road, Vincent, East London, 5201. ECSECC is involved in policy, planning and development facilitation support to 
provincial government and other stakeholders in the Eastern Cape. ECSECC is a Schedule 3C Public Entity as defined in the Public Finance 
Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA).

The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2015.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention 
as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand, which is the entity's functional currency.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements, 
are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Going concern assumption
These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for 
at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented 
in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the 
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. 
Significant judgements include: 

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates 
of provisions are included in note 13 - Provisions.

Motor vehicle residual value
The entity's management determines the estimated residual value for the entity's motor vehicle which affects the related depreciation charges. This 
estimate is based on industry norm. Management will amend the depreciation charge in the future should the estimated residual value change.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply 
of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•	 it	is	probable	that	future	economic	benefits	or	service	potential	associated	with	the	item	will	flow	to	the	entity;	and	the	cost	or	fair	value	of	

the item can be measured reliably.
•	 Property,	plant	and	equipment	is	initially	measured	at	cost.
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aCCountInG polICIeS ContD

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, or a combination of assets and 
non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's 
deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item Average useful life
Furniture and fixtures 15%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 15%
Computer equipment 33.33%

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at of each reporting date. If the expectations 
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless expectations differ 
from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or 
service potential expected from the use or disposal of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is 
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.4 Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:
•	 is	separable,	i.e.	is	capable	of	being	separated	or	divided	from	an	entity	and	sold,	transferred,	licensed,	rented	or	exchanged,	either	

individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or
•	 arises	from	binding	arrangements	(including	rights	from	contracts),	regardless	of	whether	those	rights	are	transferable	or	separable	from	the	

entity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the form 
of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
•	 it	is	probable	that	the	expected	future	economic	benefits	or	service	potential	that	are	attributable	to	the	asset	will	flow	to	the	entity;	and
•	 the	cost	or	fair	value	of	the	asset	can	be	measured	reliably.
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The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable assumptions 
that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at its fair value 
as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period 
over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, 
but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets 
amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may 
be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item Useful life
Computer software 33.33%

1.5 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at 
initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference 
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for 
impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of financial position.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial 
assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when 
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, 
an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar 
options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract 
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, 
and all other premiums or discounts. 

aCCountInG polICIeS ContD

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
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There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. 
However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or 
group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument 
(or group of financial instruments).

A financial asset is:
•	 cash;
•	 a	residual	interest	of	another	entity;	or
•	 a	contractual	right	to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
•	 deliver	cash	or	another	financial	asset	to	another	entity;	or
•	 exchange	financial	assets	or	financial	liabilities	under	conditions	that	are	potentially	unfavourable	to	the	entity.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An 
incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.

Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or in 
the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivables cost Financial asset measured at amortised
Cash and cash equivalents cost Financial asset measured at amortised
Deposits cost Financial asset measured at amortised

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or 
in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Payables from exchange transactions cost Financial liability measured at amortised 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Financial liability measured at amortised 

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
•	 Financial	instruments	at	amortised	cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

aCCountInG polICIeS ContD

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
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1.6 Prepayments
A prepaid expense is an expenditure paid for in one accounting period, but for which the underlying asset will not be consumed until a future 
period. When the asset is eventually consumed, it is charged to expense.

A prepaid expense is carried on the Statement of Financial Position of an organisation as a current asset until it is consumed. If a prepaid 
expense were likely to not be consumed within the next year, it would instead be classified on the Statement of Financial Position as a 
non-current asset. Once consumption has occurred, the prepaid expense is removed from the Statement of Financial Position and is instead 
reported in that period as an expense on the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.7 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an 
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of 
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is 
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts 
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.8 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, published 
policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as a 
result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months after the 
end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
•	 wages,	salaries	and	social	security	contributions;
•	 short-term	compensated	absences	(such	as	paid	annual	leave	and	paid	sick	leave)	where	the	compensation	for	the	absences	is	due	to	be	

settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related employee service;
•	 bonus,	incentive	and	performance	related	payments	payable	within	twelve	months	after	the	end	of	the	reporting	period	in	which	the	

employees render the related service; and
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The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in 
the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences 
as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present 
obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

1.9 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
•	 the	entity	has	a	present	obligation	as	a	result	of	a	past	event;
•	 it	is	probable	that	an	outflow	of	resources	embodying	economic	benefits	or	service	potential	will	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation;	and
•	 a	reliable	estimate	can	be	made	of	the	obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required 
to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 
is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The 
reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is 
recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured as a 
provision.

1.10 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, if both 
the following criteria are met:
•	 Contracts	should	be	non-cancellable	or	only	cancellable	at	significant	cost	(for	example,	contracts	for	computer	or	building	maintenance	

services); and
•	 Contracts	should	relate	to	something	other	than	the	routine,	steady,	state	business	of	the	entity	-	therefore	salary	commitments	relating	to	

employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

aCCountInG polICIeS ContD

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015



86    2014 / 2015 eCSeCC annual report

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net 
assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm’s length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is 
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated 
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
•	 the	amount	of	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;
•	 it	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	or	service	potential	associated	with	the	transaction	will	flow	to	the	entity;
•	 the	stage	of	completion	of	the	transaction	at	the	reporting	date	can	be	measured	reliably;	and
•	 the	costs	incurred	for	the	transaction	and	the	costs	to	complete	the	transaction	can	be	measured	reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis 
over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act 
is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent 
of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is 
determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when:
•	 It	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	or	service	potential	associated	with	the	transaction	will	flow	to	the	entity,	and
•	 The	amount	of	the	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an increase 
in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value 
from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving 
approximately equal value in exchange.
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Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is 
also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue 
equal to that reduction.

Grant funding
Revenue from non-exchange transactions is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

An unconditional grant is recognised in surplus or deficit as other income when the grant becomes receivables.

Other government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be 
received and the entity will comply with the conditions associated with the grant, and are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a 
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

As an entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from non-exchange transactions recognised 
as an asset, it shall reduce the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognise an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

1.13 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.14 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or 
that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -
(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or (c) any provincial legislation providing 

for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following 
(effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or before 
finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further 
action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited at 
year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the 
financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the register 
and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the National Treasury 
or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be 
attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover 
the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as 
debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated 
accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain 
against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the 
irregular expenditure register.
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1.15 Budget information
Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is given effect 
through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in accordance 
with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2014/04/01 to 2015/03/31.

The annual financial statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between the statement of financial 
performance and the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.16 Related parties
The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African Government. As a 
consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of 
government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged with the 
governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, 
that management in their dealings with the entity.

1.17 Changes in accounting policy, estimates and errors
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in estimates are 
disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements, 
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. In such 
cases the entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective 
restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting policies that are affected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements, 
except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy. In 
such cases the entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective 
restatement is practicable.
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2. new StanDarDS anD interPretationS

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and that 
are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation:
GRAP 1:  (as revised in 2012): Presentation of Financial Statements
GRAP 2: (as revised in 2010): Cash Flow Statements
GRAP 3:  (as revised in 2012): Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors
GRAP 5:  (as revised in 2013): Borrowing costs
GRAP 9:  (as revised in 2012): Revenue from Exchange Transactions
GRAP 13:  (as revised in 2012): Leases
GRAP 14:  (as revised in 2010): Events After the Reporting Date
GRAP 17:  (as revised in 2012): Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 19:  (as revised in 2010): Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
GRAP 21:  Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets
GRAP 23:  Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
GRAP 24:  Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25:  Employee Benefit
GRAP 26:  Impairment of Cash-generating Assets
GRAP 31:  (as revised 2012): Intangible Assets (Replaces GRAP 102)
GRAP 104: Financial Instruments

2.2 Standards and Interpretations early adopted
The entity has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact of
 Years beginning on or adoption and nature of
 after standards:
GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2016 The impact of the
  amendment is not material.

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the entity’s 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2015 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Expected impact of
 adoption and nature of
 standards:
GRAP 18: Segment Reporting No significant impact
GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under common control No significant impact
GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not under common control No significant impact
GRAP 107: Mergers No significant impact
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Figures in Rand  2015 2014

3. receiVableS from eXchanGe tranSactionS

Insurance debtor - 21 260
Office of the Premier - 49 370
Other debtors - 6 641
GIZ 66 510 -

66 510 77 271
The amount of R Nil (2014: R 49 370) receivable from Office of The Premier (OTP) relates 
to costs paid to an employee being seconded to OTP. The amount of R 66 510 (2014: nil) 
receivable from Deutsche Gesellschaft Fur International Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) relates to costs 
paid to an employee hired based on an agreement with them.

4. PrePaymentS

Atros Trust 174 792 200 945
CQS Technology 33 780 30 787
Anza Technology 87 021 65 353
Avusa Media 2 809 4 964
Cape Media - 415
Multichoice 972 1 302
Metro Computers 81 328 72 370
Accsys 14 471 13 522
OLRAC SPS - 14 416
Quantec 135 090 104 500
Pastel 429 350
Postnet 356 356
IODSA 1 718 1 010
Evergreen 1 134 1 134
Marsh Insurance - 53 604
IHS Information 137 484 130 986
Sabinet - 52 179
SABC - 50 388
ITR Technology 3 245 -
PWC 7 838 -
ESRI SA 50 920 -
Business Women Association 375 -
IORM 1 339 -
Dimension Data 179 837 -
Sage VIP 127 668 -

1 042 606 798 581
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Figures in Rand  2015 2014

5. caSh anD caSh eQuiValentS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand 1 009 1 594
Bank balances 4 958 501 3 420 568

4 959 510 3 422 162
Cash and cash equivalents have not been pledged as collateral.

6. ProPerty, Plant anD eQuiPment

2015 2014
coSt accumulateD 

DePreciation
carryinG  

Value
coSt accumulateD 

DePreciation
carryinG Value

Furniture and fittings 1 901 942 (1 368 792) 533 150 1 821 592 (1 278 003) 543 589
Motor vehicles 187 898 (18 148) 169 750 187 898 (309) 187 589
Office equipment 881 902 (524 617) 357 285 813 545 (606 805) 206 740
Computer equipment 1 391 237 (1 088 587) 302 650 1 412 148 (917 863) 494 285
Total 4 362 979 (3 000 144) 1 362 835 4 235 183 (2 802 980) 1 432 203

Reconciliation of property, plant and 
equipment - 2015

oPeninG 
balance

aDDitionS DiSPoSalS chanGe in
eStimate

DePreciation total

Furniture and fittings 543 589 244 972 (27 448) 383 (228 345) 533 151
Motor vehicles 187 589 - - - (17 839) 169 750
Office equipment 206 740 300 165 (131) 133 (149 622) 357 285
Computer equipment 494 286 61 067 (11 823) 19 190 (260 070) 302 650

1 432 204 606 204 (39 402) 19 706 (655 876) 1 362 836

Reconciliation of property, plant and 
equipment - 2014

oPeninG 
balance

aDDitionS DiSPoSalS chanGe in
eStimate

DePreciation total

Furniture and fittings 710 182 55 697 (1 564) 12 567 (233 293) 543 589
Motor vehicles - 187 898 - - (309) 187 589
Office equipment 361 895 12 928 (3 703) 3 139 (167 519) 206 740
Computer equipment 497 606 302 873 (50 984) 38 257 (293 467) 494 285

1 569 683 559 396 (56 251) 53 963 (694 588) 1 432 203
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Figures in Rand  2015 2014

6. ProPerty, Plant anD eQuiPment contD

Pledged as security
ECSECC has not pledged any of its property, plant and equipment as security

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

Borrowing costs capitalised in this period
Office equipment 278 752 94 241

The average lease term was 3 years, refer to note 9: Finance leases.

7. intanGible aSSetS

2015 2014
coSt accumulateD 

amortiSation
carryinG  

Value
coSt accumulateD 

amortiSation
carryinG  

Value

Computer software 368 804 (140 961) 227 843 125 528 (96 506) 29 022

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015
oPeninG 

balance
aDDitionS amortiSation total

Computer software 29 022 243 276 (44 455) 227 843

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014
oPeninG 

balance
amortiSation total

Computer software 60 159 (31 137) 29 022

Pledged as security
ECSECC has not pledged any of its intangible assets as security.
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Figures in Rand  2015 2014

8. DePoSit

Atros Trust 330 659 -

The deposit amounting to R 330 659 (2014: R 0.00) paid to Atros Trust was 
paid as per the requirements of the office accommodation lease agreement.

9. finance leaSe obliGation

Minimum lease payments due
within one year 109 330 100 630
in second to fifth year inclusive 248 478 -

357 808 100 630
less: future finance charges (71 092) (2 789)
Present value of minimum lease payments 286 716 97 841

Minimum lease payments due
within one year 74 444 97 841
in second to fifth year inclusive 212 272 -

286 716 97 841

Non-current liabilities 212 272 -
Current liabilities 74 444 97 841

286 716 97 841
The average lease term was 3 years, and the average effective borrowing 
rate was 1.25% (2014: 039% to 1.1%).
There is no contingent rental payable on the leasing arrangements.
No restrictions are imposed by the lease arrangements.

10. oPeratinG leaSe liability

Non-current liabilities 121 180 -
Current liabilities - 119 408

121 180 119 408

The Entity has entered into an operating lease for operating premises. Leased 
property remain with the lessor throughout the lease term and upon the 
expiration of the lease agreement.
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Figures in Rand 2015 2014

11. PayableS from eXchanGe tranSactionS

Trade payables 1 522 380 924 123
Accrued leave pay 1 338 741 1 417 217
Thirteenth cheque accrual 248 687 313 410

3 109 808 2 654 750

12. PayableS from non-eXchanGe tranSactionS

Refunds arising from non-exchange revenue 3 188 443 2 062 370

Refund arising from non-exchange revenue relates to surplus recognised as a 
payable, refer to note 31.

13. ProViSionS

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015 oPeninG 
balance

aDDitionS utiliSeD  
DurinG the 

year

reVerSeD 
DurinG the 

year

Prior year 
unDer 

ProViSion

total

Compensation commissioner 3 004 - - (3 004) - -
Performance bonus 1 100 506 1 285 670 (1 282 127) - 181 621 1 285 670

1 103 510 1 285 670 (1 282 127) (3 004) 181 621 1 285 670

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014 oPeninG 
balance

aDDitionS utiliSeD  
DurinG the 

year

reVerSeD 
DurinG the 

year

total

Compensation commissioner 46 379 - (42 053) (1 322) 3 004
Performance bonus 953 591 1 333 906 (1 186 991) - 1 100 506

999 970 1 333 906 (1 229 044) (1 322) 1 103 510

The provision for performance bonus relates to bonus to be paid out to employees depending 
on each employees' and the entity's performance at each year end.

This amount is categorised as a provision due to uncertainty about the performance rating 
of the employees at year end, as the assessments are normally done after year end and 
the uncertainty about the performance of the entity due to unavailability of audited annual 
financial statements at the time of preparing the annual financial statements.

The compensation commissioner provision relates to amounts payable to the compensation fund 
administered by the Department of Labour for claims relating to employees injured on duty.
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Figures in Rand 2015 2014

14. reVenue from non-eXchanGe tranSactionS

Grant - Office of The Premier 47 781 927 42 486 742
Unido - 32 213
Grant - DRDAR - 2 052 600
Grant - NMBMM - 720 000

47 781 927 45 291 555

Office of The Premier
In terms of the Service Level Agreement between ECSECC and OTP, this grant is used to fund 
the core functions of the organisation.
Grants received 48 908 000 45 431 600
Funds to be surrendered movement (1 126 073) (140 045)

47 781 927 45 291 555

15. other income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 516 25 445
Other income 779 -

9 295 25 445

16. oPeratinG (Deficit) SurPluS

Operating (deficit) surplus for the year is stated after 
accounting for the following:
Directors' remuneration
for executive services rendered 2 328 532 2 194 613
for non-executive services rendered 550 387 648 478

2 878 919 2 843 091

Operating lease charges
Premises
Rental on straight line basis 2 396 607 2 053 137

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 8 516 25 445
Amortisation on intangible assets 44 455 31 137
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 636 174 640 624
Employee costs 30 140 004 29 668 921
Repairs and maintenance 21 718 17 485
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Figures in Rand 2015 2014

17. inVeStment reVenue

Interest revenue
Bank 402 113 218 823

18. finance coStS

Finance lease 10 190 11 343

19. DonationS

This donations R nil (2014: 52 100) was made to Real Gijima club as a sponsorship 
for prizes paid to runners who participated in the Healthy Living Lifestyle race. The 
Mdantsane 10 km race was identified as the main vehicle to drive the prevention 
"Healthy Living Lifestyle" campaign because it was already an established brand 
that attracts young people from all corners of the province.

Real Gijima - 52 100

20. caSh GenerateD from (uSeD in) oPerationS

Surplus 276 786 360 944
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 680 629 671 761
Gain on sale of assets and liabilities (8 516) (25 445)
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 1 772 (279 970)
Movements in provisions 182 160 103 540
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions 10 761 (60 272)
Receivables from non-exchange transactions - 179 777
Prepayments (244 025) (402 859)
Payables from exchange transactions 455 054 22 686
Payables from non exchange transactions 1 126 073 (674 278)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts - (32 213)

2 480 694 (136 329)
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Figures in Rand 2015 2014

21. financial inStrumentS DiScloSure

Categories of financial instruments

2015 
Financial assets

fair Value 
throuGh 

SurPluS or
Deficit

total

Receivables from exchange transactions 66 510 66 510
Cash and cash equivalents 4 959 510 4 959 510
Deposit 330 659 330 659

5 356 679 5 356 679

Financial liabilities
at amortiSeD

coSt
total

Payables from exchange transactions 3 109 808 3 109 808
Payables from non-exchange transactions 3 188 443 3 188 443

6 298 251 6 298 251

2014 
Financial assets

fair Value 
throuGh 

SurPluS or
Deficit

total

Receivables from exchange transactions 77 271 77 271
Cash and cash equivalents 3 422 162 3 422 162

3 499 433 3 499 433

Financial liabilities
at amortiSeD

coSt
total

Payables from exchange transactions 2 654 750 2 654 750
Payables from non-exchange transactions 2 062 370 2 062 370

4 717 120 4 717 120
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Figures in Rand 2015 2014

22. General eXPenSeS

Accounting fees - 29 777
Advertising 146 267 93 962
Auditors remuneration 1 476 043 1 320 400
Bank charges 19 749 19 242
Cleaning 80 183 79 730
Computer expenses 188 413 133 418
Consulting and professional fees 3 196 743 3 413 267
Donations - 52 100
Hire 104 630 114 188
Insurance 79 414 64 139
Lease rentals on operating lease 2 396 607 2 053 137
Postage and courier 3 604 908
Printing and stationery 120 570 106 245
Security 271 701 245 505
Subscriptions and membership fees 695 611 327 060
Telephone and fax 584 327 472 115
Travel 4 588 698 4 456 765
Electricity 295 020 278 557
General expenses 40 369 22 594
Publications 2 225 676 870 678
Board fees 550 387 648 478

17 064 012 14 802 265

23. emPloyee relateD coStS

Basic 17 201 341 16 823 231
Performance bonus 1 467 477 1 333 906
Medical aid 399 811 374 623
UIF 163 084 167 674
PAYE 7 523 112 7 444 978
Staff cell costs 26 451 33 258
Retirement annuity fund 789 843 824 224
Group life insurance 556 423 572 423
13th Cheques 1 438 955 1 636 275
Compensation commissioner 42 793 16 701
Garnishes 36 650 58 531
Relocation costs - 123 589
Staff training 494 064 259 508

30 140 004 29 668 921
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24. auDitorS' remuneration

Fees 1 476 043 1 320 400

25. commitmentS

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
within one year 2 153 433 803 778
in second to fifth year inclusive 9 452 594 -

11 606 027 803 778

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for its office properties. 
Leases are negotiated for an average term of five years. No contingent rent is payable.

Committed expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
Professional fees 1 388 124 933 222
Stationery - 11 667
Publications 229 527 -
Travel and workshop 21 417 -

1 639 068 944 889

26. continGencieS

The entity has no contingent liabilities at period end.

27. relateD PartieS

Relationships
Government department - Controlling department
Office of The Premier

Related party balances

Receivable from exchange transactions
Office of the Premier - 49 370

Related party transactions

Government Grant
Office of The Premier 48 908 000 42 659 000
DRDAR - 2 052 600



100    2014 / 2015 eCSeCC annual report

Figures in Rand 2015 2014

28. member'S anD PreScribeD officer'S emolumentS

Executive
2015

baSic Salary allowanceS bonuSeS total

Andrew Murray 1 305 717 18 000 73 138 1 396 855
Andisa Zinja 873 443 9 000 49 234 931 677

2 179 160 27 000 122 372 2 328 532

Executive
2014

baSic Salary allowanceS bonuSeS total

Andrew Murray 1 229 146 18 000 69 523 1 316 669
Andisa Zinja 822 144 9 000 46 800 877 944

2 051 290 27 000 116 323 2 194 613

Service contracts
The executive directors are subject to written employment agreements. The employment 
agreements regulate duties, remuneration, allowances, restraints, leave and notice periods of 
these executives. None of these service contracts exceed 5 years.

Service contract: Andrew Murray. Start date: 01 May 2014 - End date : 30 April 2019
Service period: 5 years. Remaining - 4 year and 1 months
Service contract: Andisa Zinja. Start date: 01 July 2012 - End date : 30 June 2015
Service period: 3 years. Remaining - 3 months

Non-executive
2015

memberS' feeS total

G. Mpumza (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 30 822 30 822
K. Hustler (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 31 763 31 763
Z. Tini (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 54 200 54 200
T. Toyis (Appointed 28 August 2014) 14 160 14 160
D. Classen (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 63 835 63 835
P. Ndendela (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 50 950 50 950
N. Kontsiwe(Resigned 28 August 2014) 7 600 7 600
R. Moodley (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 61 222 61 222
L. Holbrook (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 38 429 38 429
D. Dyasop (Appointed 28 August 2014) 30 400 30 400
T. Mayekiso (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 7 600 7 600
M. Rayi (Resigned 28 August 2014) 11 800 11 800
S. Mabizela (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 3 800 3 800
K. Meth (Re-appointed 28 August 2014) 5 206 5 206

411 787 411 787
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Non-executive
2014

memberS' feeS total

G. Mpumza (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 11 796 11 796
K. Hustler (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 27 003 27 003
Z. Tini (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 70 808 70 808
D. Classen (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 73 566 73 566
P. Ndendela (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 54 612 54 612
N. Kontsiwe (Appointed 22 August 2013) 20 831 20 831
R. Moodley (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 73 072 73 072
L. Holbrook (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 62 054 62 054
T. Mayekiso (Appointed 22 August 2013) 7 600 7 600
M. Rayi (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 59 117 59 117
S. Mabizela (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 7 600 7 600
J. Mjwara (Resigned 22 August 2013) 16 586 16 586
K. Meth (Re-appointed 22 August 2013) 29 803 29 803

514 448 514 448

Audit Committee
2015

memberS' feeS total

N. Mnconywa (Chairperson) 31 400 31 400
G. Bana 19 000 19 000
R. Hill 19 000 19 000
L. Steele 19 000 19 000

88 400 88 400

Audit Committee
2014

memberS' feeS total

N. Mnconywa (Chairperson) 31 400 31 400
G. Bana 14 630 14 630
R. Hill 22 800 22 800
L. Steele 19 000 19 000

87 830 87 830
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Risk Committee
2015

memberS' feeS total

G. Bana (Chairperson) 19 800 19 800
C. Sparg 15 200 15 200
N. Hlongwane 15 200 15 200

50 200 50 200

Risk Committee
2014

memberS' feeS total

G. Bana (Chairperson) 15 800 15 800
C. Sparg 15 200 15 200
N. Hlongwane 15 200 15 200

46 200 46 200

Key Management Personnel
2015

PoSition SerVice PerioD baSic Salary allowanceS total

N. Mbovane Corporate Services Manager April 2014 -
31 March 2015

913 108 9 000 922 108

M. Sycholt Policy Research and
Information PM

1 April 2014 -
31 August 2014

487 631 3 750 491 381

T. Qholosha Social Mobilisation PM 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

849 657 9 000 858 657

V. Dayile HIV/AIDS PM 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

965 994 9 000 974 994

L. Jack Chief Operations Officer 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

982 603 9 000 991 603

B. Mhlaba Strategic Governance PM 1 April 2014 -
31 March 2015

1 147 079 9 000 1 156 079

S. Hesjedal Knowledge and Information PM 1 April 2014 - 
31 March 2015

913 041 9 000 922 041

M. Mwelase Acting CFO 19 May 2014 -
19 November
2014

302 574 3 000 305 574

R. Grinker Acting Economic Governance
PM

1 April 2014 -
30 September
2014

492 801 4 500 497 301

M. Lewis Acting Economic Governance 
PM

1 October 2014
- 31 March 2015

546 133 4 500 550 633

7 600 621 69 750 7 670 371
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Key Management Personnel
2014

PoSition SerVice PerioD baSic Salary allowanceS total

N. Mbovane Corporate Services Manager 1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

855 783 9 000 864 783

A. Banda Stakeholder Mobilisation PM 1 April 2013 -
31 January 
2014

788 464 7 500 795 964

M. Sycholt Policy Research and  
Information PM

1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

822 975 9 000 831 975

T. Qholosha Social Mobilisation PM 1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

797 894 9 000 806 894

V. Dayile HIV/AIDS PM 1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

892 604 9 000 901 604

L. Jack Chief Operations Officer 1 April 2013 - 
31 March 2014

901 446 9 000 910 446

B Mhlaba DPI PM 1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

1 074 621 9 000 1 083 621

V. Makanjee ERD PM 1 April 2013 -
30 June 2013

269 816 2 250 272 067

C. Nogaya ERD Acting PM 1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

474 126 4 000 478 126

S. Hesjedal IKM PM 1 April 2013 -
31 March 2014

854 269 9 000 863 269

7 731 998 76 750 7 808 749

Key management personnel are subject to written employment agreements. The employment 
agreements regulate duties, remuneration, allowances, restraints, leave and notice periods of 
these executives. None of these service contracts exceed 5 years.

Summary
Executive Directors 2 328 532 2 194 613
Key Management Personnel 7 670 371 7 808 749
Other Employees 20 141 101 19 665 559

30 140 004 29 668 921
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28. riSk manaGement

Capital risk management

The entity is solely dependant on the grant from the Office of the Premier.

Liquidity risk
The entity receives a grant from the Office of the Premier. All accruals and commitments in the 
2014-2015 financial year were accounted for on the grant received for the same financial year, 
therefore the entity will meet its expected financial commitments. On going review of cash 
froms are done to ensure that payments and accruals do not exceed grant received.

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments 
and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit 
standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Receivables from exchange transactions relate to amounts receivable from the Office of The 
Premier and Deutsche Gesellschaft Fur International Zusammenarbeit (GIZ). Management 
evaluated credit risk relating to debtors on an ongoing basis. If debtors are independently rated, 
these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the 
credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and 
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance 
with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

Market risk

Interest rate risk
At 31 March 2015, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% 
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, surplus for the year would have been 
R 2 768 (2014: R 3 609) lower/higher.

Method used - Sensitivity analysis is based on the interest charged on borrowings by 
financial institutions.

There were no significant changes from the previous period method used.
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30. irreGular eXPenDiture

Opening balance 723 116 723 116
Less: Amounts condoned (723 116) -

- 723 116

Irregular expenditure was identified during the previous financial years relating to expenditure 
incurred for the years ended 2010 and 2011. This expenditure was written-off by the board of 
directors during the current period.

31. refunDS ariSinG from non-eXchanGe reVenue

Funds to be surrendered
Cash and cash equivalents 4 959 510 3 425 572
Less: ECSECC accruals (1 522 380) (1 049 792)
Less: Thirteenth cheque accrual (248 687) (313 410)

3 188 443 2 062 370

In terms of section 53 of PFMA, ECSECC as a Public Entity may not accumulate surpluses 
unless the prior written approval of the Provincial Treasury has been obtained.

32. chanGe in eStimate

Management revised the estimated useful lives of some of its property, plant and equipment 
to as follows: Computer equipment: revised from 3 - 10 years to 3 - 12 years
Office equipment: revised from 6 - 10 years to 6 - 12 years Furniture and fittings: revised from 
6 - 10 years to 6 - 13 years
The effect of the revision has decreased the depreciation charge for the current and future 
periods by:
Computer equipment 19 190 38 257
Office equipment 133 3 139
Furniture and fittings 383 12 567

19 706 53 963
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InCoMe StateMent

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 
R’000

2014 
R’000

reVenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income 15 779 -
Interest received - investment 17 402 113 218 823
Total revenue from exchange transactions 402 892 218 823

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 14 47 781 927 45 291 555

Total revenue 48 184 819 45 510 378

eXPenDiture

Employee related costs 23 (30 140 004) (29 668 921)

Depreciation and amortisation (680 629) (671 761)

Finance costs 18 (10 190) (11 343)

Lease rentals on operating lease (2 396 607) (2 053 137)

Debt Impairment - (3 104)

Repairs and maintenance (21 718) (17 485)

General Expenses 22 (14 667 401) (12 749 128)

Total expenditure (47 916 549) (45 174 879)

Operating surplus 16 268 270 335 499

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities 8 516 25 445

Surplus for the year 276 786 360 944

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
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